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AICL
Directors’ Report 2013-14
The Directors take pleasure in presenting the 43rd Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts and
Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 March 2014.
CIVIL AVIATION SCENARIO

As per statistics gathered from DGCA /IATA sources, it has been estimated that the Indian Civil Aviation sector grew by
about 5.7% in the Financial Year (FY) 2013-14. The total carriage within and to / from India is estimated to have crossed
the 100 million mark for the first time, going up from estimated carriage of 98.4 Million in FY 2012-13 to about 103.7
million in 2013-14, with international traffic to / from India accounting for about 43.5 million. At a drilled down level, it
has been estimated that the domestic market grew by about 4.8% while the international traffic to / from India grew at a
healthier rate of slightly over 7%.
What is perhaps of greater relevance to Air India Express is the significant growth of about 38% registered during the
financial year in the traffic carried on the India – Gulf routes, that account for about 40% of the total international traffic to
/ from India, where a large majority of the Airline’s capacities are deployed. The phenomenal growth in the traffic on the
India – Gulf routes may be attributed largely to the entry of Indigo and Spice Jet on these routes and a marked increase in
capacity offered on these routes by Jet Airways. The additional entitlements given to the Gulf carriers, Etihad in particular
in the wake of the strategic alliance they had concluded with Jet Airways during the financial year was also another
reason for the high rate of growth. Additionally, in FY 2012-13, some of the scheduled services of Air India Express on
these routes had been affected between the months of May and August due to the pilots deputed to the Airline from Air
India joining the agitation sponsored by the Indian Pilots Guild, whereas the operations of the Airline were normal in FY
2013-14. Consequently, Air India Express recorded a significant increase of 23.6% in its total passenger carriage with
the carriage on its international routes going up by 19%.
The short / medium term outlook for the India – Gulf / South East Asia routes which are the core markets for Air India
Express is quite promising with IATA forecasting in its Global Report of 2013, CAGR of about 6% - 8% for these markets
up to FY 2018. The projections augur well for Air India Express as the airline has potential to increase the utilization of its
existing aircraft resources and thereby increase the capacity offered by it. The growth projections also support Airline’s
plan to induct eight more B 737-800 aircraft on lease during the years 2015 and 2016 to replace the four aircraft that are
slated to be returned in the First Quarter of FY 2015 and to provide for additional aircraft resources to enable the Airline
to pursue the growth trajectory envisaged for it under the approved turnaround plan for the Parent Company, Air India
Limited (AI) and its subsidiaries.
REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

The highlights of the Physical and Financial Performance of the Company for 2013-14 vis-à-vis 2012-13 are as under:
The Scheduled Services Revenue, before revenue sharing AI, substantially increased from Rs. 1,775.09 crores in
2012-13 to Rs. 2,359.45 crores in 2013-14. The total expenditure of the Company was Rs. 2,412.43 crores as against
Rs. 1,945.21 crores for the year 2012-13, representing an increase of  24.02%, which was mainly due to increase in
operation / Fuel Expenditure / Material Consumption & Outside repair.
The Net Loss before taxation during 2013-14 was Rs. 345.32 crores as against Rs. 351.16 crores in 2012-13.
SUMMARISED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

		

Rupees in Crores

Operating Revenue (before Rev. Sharing)
Operating Expenses
Operating Profit (before Revenue Sharing)

2,364.33
1,996.82
367.51

Operating Revenue (after Rev. Sharing)
Operating Expenses
Operating Profit (after Revenue Sharing)

2,069.40
1,996.82
72.58
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Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Loss before taxation & Exceptional Items
Less : Exceptional Items
Provision for Taxation
Net Loss

2,069.61
2,412.43
342.82
2.50
345.32

Add : Balance brought forward from previous years

2,059.58

Net Loss carried forward

2,404.90

SUMMARISED PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE:
ASKMs (Million)
RPKMs (Million)

8,121.65
6,396.27
78.76%
2.72
3.62
67,316

Pax Load Factor
No. of Revenue Pax (Million)
Yield Per RPKM (Rs.)
Revenue Flying Hours
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital
As on 31 March 2014, the Authorised Capital of the Company was Rs. 30 crores divided into 30 lakhs Equity Shares of
Rs.100 each.
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
As on 31 March 2014, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 30 crores divided into
30 lakhs Equity Shares of Rs.100 each.
AIRCRAFT FINANCING :

As on 31 March 2014, the position of foreign currency borrowing for Aircraft was as under:
Rupees in Crores

Total Loan due as on 1 April 2013
Less: Amount repaid during April 2012 to March 2014
Add: Exchange adjustments due to revision in rates of currencies
Balance as on 31 March 2014

2,370.83
(301.06)
216.91
2,187.21

AIR INDIA EXPRESS OPERATIONS

Fleet Size
As on 31 March 2014, the Company had 21 B737-800 aircraft. After the return of 4 leased aircraft during the first quarter
of 2014-15, the company currently has 17 owned B737 – 800 aircraft.
Operations
Air India Express began the winter 2013-14 schedule with a total of 188 flights per week at average aircraft utilization
of 9.4 hours per day per aircraft. However, between 15 January 2014 and the end of the Winter 2014-15 schedule, the
operations on some of the loss-making routes were withdrawn / curtailed as the 4 leased aircraft that were due for return
in the first quarter of FY 2014-15 were grounded in phases to prepare them for redelivery. The details of the withdrawal
of the leased aircraft from services and consequential reduction in operations were as follows:
The first of the four aircraft was taken out of operations from the Trivandrum base effective 15 January 2014. As a result,
2 flights on the Trivandrum–Kochi–Salalah and vv route were cancelled and the frequency of flights on the Trivandrum
– Dubai and vv route was reduced from 5 to 3 flights per week.
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The second of the leased aircraft was taken out of operations from the Kochi base, effective 15 February 2014.
Consequently, the thrice weekly operation on the Kochi–Mangalore–Kuwait and vv route was withdrawn. The Kochi –
Kuwait passengers were offered suitable connections to Kuwait over Kozhikode.
The third leased aircraft was taken out of operations from the Chennai base, effective 15 March 2014, resulting in the
withdrawal of the Airline’s daily services on the Chennai–Colombo and vv route and the frequency of flights on the
Chennai–Mumbai and vv route reduced from daily to once weekly.
The 4th leased aircraft was withdrawn from scheduled services at the end of the winter 2013-14 schedule.
Thus the winter 2013-14 schedule ended with 143 international and 20 domestic flights per week with average utilization
going down in phases below 9 hours per day per aircraft, although the utilization had been around 9.4 hours per day
during the first 3 months of the schedule. Route-wise breakup of the flights operated by the Airline as at the end of the
winter 2013-14 schedule was as under:
Sr. No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

Sector
India/Dubai
India/Abu Dhabi
India/Sharjah
India/Abu Dhabi/Muscat
India/Muscat
India/Dammam
India/Doha/Bahrain
India/Doha
India/Bahrain
India/Al Ain
India/Salalah
India/Kuwait
India/Singapore
India/Kuala Lumpur
Domestic

Flights/ Week
59
21
13
03
11
04
07
06
02
01
01
03
07
05
20
163

TOTAL

During the FY 2013-14 Air India Express carried about 2.72 million passengers as against 2.15 million passengers
in 2012-13, 26% over the carriage figure achieved in FY 2012-13 as against increase in capacity amounting to 17%.
The Airline’s overall revenue including ancillary revenue grew at a higher rate of 32% rising from Rs. 1727.22 crores in
2012-13 to Rs. 2287.05 in 2013-14. The Passenger Load Factor increased by 5% and the Revenue per Available Seat
Kilometer (RASK) increased by nearly 13%.
During the period April – October 2014, the Airline has improved its performance over the same period last year against
all key parameters. Despite the reduction in the fleet strength from 21 aircraft to 17 aircraft, with more intense aircraft
utilization, the Airline has managed not only to retain but to increase the capacity offered by about 0.2%. The average
aircraft utilization has risen to about 10.5 hours per day. This coupled with increase in yields and the passenger load
factor has helped the Airline to record an increase of over 10% in passenger revenues and growth in RASK of about the
same order. It is pertinent to record that during the current Financial Year, the Airline has achieved schedule reliability of
over 99% and OTP of around 81%. Air India Express has carried over 1.5 million passengers in the current Fiscal up to
the end of October 2014.
Summer 2014 Schedule
Between 1 May and 20 July 2014, Dubai International Airport had notified a NOTAM resulting in partial closure of
the runway at that Airport. Acting quickly, Air India Express was able to obtain equivalent, alternative slots at Sharjah
International Airport and thereby sustained its scheduled services from Tiruchirapalli, Amritsar, Lucknow, Pune, Jaipur
and Mangalore with adequate advance notice to the passengers and consequently minimal inconvenience to them.
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The Summer 2014 schedule operated comprised of 149 international flights and 11 domestic flights. The average aircraft
utilization was approximately 10.5 hours per day.
On Line Stations
As on 31 March 2014 the online stations were as under:
India :

Kozhikode, Kochi, Thiruvananthapuram, Mangalore, Chennai, Tiruchirapalli, Mumbai, Pune, Amritsar,
Lucknow,  Jaipur.
Foreign : Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Sharjah, Al Ain, Muscat, Salalah, Bahrain, Doha, Kuwait, Dammam, Singapore, Kuala
Lumpur.
Aircraft despatch reliability
The aircraft despatch reliability for the year was 99.03 %.
HUMAN RESOURCES

Staff Strength
1.

The staff strength as on 31 March 2014 was as under:
SC

208

ST

78

OBC

236

General

684

Total

1206

In addition to the above there were 147 employees who were on deputation from the holding Company Air India
Limited.
As on 1 January 2014 there was one employee with disabilities in the services of the Company.
IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

The Company is taking effective steps for the implementation of the provisions of the Official Language Act and Rules
framed under the Act.
VIGILANCE

During the year under review there was no vigilance case in the Company.
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended, is set out in the Annexure to the Directors’ Report.
COMPLIANCE WITH THE RTI ACT, 2005

During the year 15 cases of requests were received in addition to 4 cases pending. Out of these, 7 cases were
replied to.
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH AIR INDIA ENGINEERING SERVICES LTD. (AIESL)

The Company has signed an MOU on 7 August 2014 with Air India Engineering Services Ltd. (AIESL) which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Air India Ltd.  As per the terms of the MOU, AICL has decided to formally transfer its MRO business
to AIESL. AIESL will take care of the repair and maintenance of the Engines and aircraft of the Company for which a
Service Level Agreement is being formalized.
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AUDITORS

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has appointed M/s Kirtane & Pandit, Mumbai as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2013-14.
COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL

The Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 619(4) of the Companies Act, 1956 on the
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 are annexed to this report.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Report on Corporate Governance is annexed at Annexure A.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

(i)

In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanations relating to material departures;

(ii)

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

(iii)

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company  and  for  
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)

The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board sincerely appreciates the Company’s valued customers in India and abroad for using the services of Air India
Express and looks forward to their continued support and confidence.
The Board also gratefully acknowledges the support and guidance received from parent Company viz. Air India Ltd.,
various Ministries of the Government of India, and the Ministry of Civil Aviation in particular, in Company’s operations
and development plans. The Board expresses their grateful thanks also to the DGCA, Comptroller and Auditor General
of India, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Statutory Auditors, Airports Authority of India, other Govt. Departments,
airlines, agents, Indian Financial Institutions and banks including the EXIM bank of USA.

For & on behalf of the Board
Sd/(Rohit Nandan)
Chairman
Place : New Delhi
Date : 6 February 2015
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ANNEXURE A
Report on Corporate Governance
1.

Board of Directors

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, the number of Directors shall not be less than three and not more
than fourteen.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS ON 31 MARCH 2014

Shri Rohit Nandan
Dr. Shefali Juneja
Smt Puja Jindal
Shri S. Venkat
ACM Fali H Major (Retd)

Chairman
Director, Ministry of Civil Aviation
Director, Ministry of Civil Aviation
Director (Finance), Air India Ltd.
Independent Director

ACM Fali H Major (Retd) ceased to be Director effective 10 May 2014. The Board places on record its appreciation of the
valuable services rendered by ACM Fali H Major (Retd.) as Independent Director on the Board of the Company.
During the year, all meetings of the Board were chaired by the Chairman.The Board met five times during the year to
periodically review the performance of the Company and to discuss important issues which inter alia included Instrument
of Delegation of Powers, MOU between AICL and AIESL, Return of 4 B 737-800 leased aircraft, Flight Safety Review,
induction of manpower, Call Centre, etc.
Details regarding the Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting, Directors’ Attendance thereat, Directorships and
Committee positions held by the Directors are as under :
Board Meetings
Five Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2013-14 on the following dates:
25 June 2013
16 September 2013
11 November 2013
17 February 2014
10 March 2014

-

(189th Meeting)
(190th Meeting)
(191st Meeting)
(192nd Meeting)
(193rd Meeting)
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Particulars of Directors including their attendance at the Board/Shareholders’ Meetings during the financial year
2013-14:
Name of the Director

Academic
Qualifications

Attendance out of 5
Details of
Board Meetings held Directorships held
during the year
in other Companies

Memberships held
in Committees

Non Executive
Directors (Ex officio)
Shri Rohit Nandan
CMD – Air India Ltd.
Chairman

Post Graduation in
History & MBA from
UK

5

Chairman &
Member
Managing Director
Audit Committee
Air India Limited
Part-Time Chairman
Air India Air Transport
Services Ltd.
Air India Engineering
Services Ltd.
Airline Allied Services
Ltd.
Hotel Corporation of
India Ltd.
Director
Air Mauritius Limited
Air Mauritius Holdings
Limited
Air India SATS Airport
Services Pvt. Ltd.

Shri S Venkat
Director – Finance
Air India Ltd.

B.Com, FCA, FCWA,
FCS & CPA (US)
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Director
Member
Air India Ltd.
Audit Committee
Air India Air Transport
Services Ltd.
Air India Engineering
Services Ltd.
Airline Allied Services
Ltd.
Hotel Corporation of
India Ltd.
Air India SATS Airport
Services Pvt. Ltd.

Dr Shefali Juneja
Director, Ministry of
Civil Aviation

M.A., M.(Phil) PhD.

3

Director
Chairman
Airline Allied Services Audit Committee
Ltd.

Smt. Puja Jindal
Director, Ministry of
Civil Aviation

Post Graduate

5

Director
Member
Airline Allied Services HR Committee
Ltd.
Pawan Hans
Helicopters Limited

Graduate from National
Defence Acadamy

4

NIL

Independent Directors
Air Chief Marshal Fali
H Major (Retd)
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Chairman
HR Committee

AICL
2.

Audit Committee

As part of the Corporate Governance process and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
DPE Guidelines, the Audit Committee of the Board is constituted.
As on 31 March 2014 the following were the members of the Audit Committee :
Dr. Shefali Juneja		
Shri Rohit Nandan		
Shri S. Venkat		

Chairperson
Member
Member

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

To consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit fee and  all matters related to an auditor’s resignation
or dismissal;
To discuss with the external auditor, before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit and to ensure
coordination where more than one audit firm is involved;
To review the half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission  to the Board;
To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audits and any matter that the auditor may
wish to discuss in the absence of Management where necessary;
To review the statutory auditor’s report, Management’s response  thereto and to take steps to ensure implementation  
of the recommendations of the Statutory Auditors;
To review the Company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the Board;
To review the internal audit programme, ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors and also
to ensure that the internal audit function is commensurate with the size and nature of the airline’s business and is
provided adequate resources and representation within the company;
To consider the major findings of internal investigation and Management’s response thereto;
To review on a continuous basis the internal controls, systems and procedures in the Company and to make
suggestions to strengthen these controls etc.; and
To consider other matters as defined by the Board.

The Audit Committee met two times during the year to review various issues including inter alia annual accounts of the
Company for the year before submission to the Board, on the following dates :
18 July 2013 (14th Meeting)
17 February 2014 (15th Meeting)
Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings
Name of the Member
Dr. Shefali Juneja, Chairman
Shri Rohit Nandan, Member
Shri S. Venkat, Member
3.

No. of Meetings Attended
2
2
2

Annual General Meetings during the last three years

The details of these meetings are given below :
40th Annual General
Meeting
41st Annual General
Meeting
42nd Annual General
Meeting

Date and time of the Meeting
28 December 2011 at 1200 Noon
19 December 2012 at 1200 Noon
23 December 2013 at 1630 hrs

9

Venue
Conference Room, 21st Floor, Air India Building,
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021.
Conference Room, 21st Floor, Air India Building,
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021.
Conference Room, 21st Floor, Air India Building,
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021.
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Annexure
Information Pursuant to Section 217(2-A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules 1975 and forming part of the Director’s Report for the year ended 31 March 2014 List of staff
whose salary exceeds Rs. 5,00,000 a month or Rs. 60,00,000 annually.
Sl. N. Names

Designation

Age

Exp. Remuneration in Qualification
Years
Rupees

Date of
Joining

Last Employment

1

CAPT SUNNY ASALDEKAR

INSTRUCTOR

30

10

8,444,079.88

B.COM

24/11/2004

N.A.

2

CAPT SAJNEESH SHARMA

CHECK PILOT

36

10

7,369,810.88

HSC

24/11/2004

N.A.

3

CAPT BRIJESH RAMA
RATHOD

CAPTAIN

29

10

6,197,160.88

HSC

24/11/2004

N.A.

4

CAPT SINGH NIRMAL JEET

CHECK PILOT

50

27

6,884,760.88

M Sc

14/12/2004

INDIAN NAVY

5

CAPT V S RAJKUMAR

CAPTAIN

40

14

7,720,810.88

B Sc

1/5/2005

CONTINENTAL
WINES LTD

6

CAPT GUPTA DHIRAJ RAI

INSTRUCTOR

52

31

8,461,530.88

M Sc

14/12/2004

AIR FORCE

7

CAPT OM KUMAR SINGH

CAPTAIN

29

8

6,197,910.88

HSC

14/12/2005

N.A.

8

CAPT SYED ABU THEHER

CAPTAIN

36

8

6,130,050.88

B Sc

01/01/2006

N.A.

9

CAPT HARISH GUPTA

CAPTAIN

40

18

6,554,060.88

HSC

21/02/2006

ALLIANCE AIR

10

CAPT ASHISIH GANGURDE

CAPTAIN

51

20

6,286,810.88

SSC

11

CAPT SATINDER JIT SINGH CAPTAIN

51

20

6,585,160.88

SSC

13/04/2006

BSF

12

CAPT. KAUSHAL
ASALDEKAR

28

10

7,415,677.88

B.COM

09/01/2006

N.A.

13

CAPT KANAK CHATURVEDI CAPTAIN

37

9

6,486,760.88

B Sc

1/5/2005

INDIAN COAST
GUARD

14

CAPT. ARUN KOCHHAR

CAPTAIN

46

22

6,774,880.88

B. TECH

11/04/2005

AIR SAHARA

15

CAPT. SHARAD DOGRA

INSTRUCTOR

39

22

8,070,570.88

HSC

12/04/2005

AIR SAHARA

16

CAPT. SAMEER DOGRA

INSTRUCTOR

37

17

8,595,410.88

HSC

01/03/2006

AIR SAHARA

17

CAPT. ANAND KUMAR

CHECK PILOT

42

21

7,393,360.88

B Sc

07/12/2006

AIR SAHARA

18

CAPT. G. SIDHU

CHECK PILOT

54

34

7,282,560.88

SSC

13/07/2006

ALLIANCE AIR

19

CAPT. R. P. SINGH

INSTRUCTOR

49

30

7,873,672.88

M Sc

10/03/2006

INDIAN NAVY

20

CAPT TARUN KAPOOR

CAPTAIN

50

29

6,748,160.88

B Sc

1/7/2007

INDIAN NAVY

21

CAPT. ALOK NAYAK

CAPTAIN

49

29

7,046,480.88

BA

07/01/2007

INDIAN NAVY

22

CAPT. AJU CHERIAN

CAPTAIN

51

25

6,842,080.88

B Sc

16/07/2007

IndiGo

23

CAPT G S BHOGAL

CAPTAIN

64

37

6,606,876.88

M Sc

15/10/2007

AIR FORCE

24

CAPT D S JAIN

CAPTAIN

52

37

6,673,860.88

M Sc

6/10/2008

AIR FORCE

25

CAPT K A KUMAR

CAPTAIN

60

39

6,724,060.88

M Sc

5/11/2007

AIR FORCE

26

CAPT C B GUPTA

CAPTAIN

52

29

6,747,330.88

PGDBA

6/10/2008

INDIAN NAVY

27

CAPT KAPIL GUPTA

CAPTAIN

41

23

7,203,310.88

M Sc

5/5/2009

EAST WEST AIRLINE

28

CAPT MS BINDU SEBASTIAN CAPTAIN

41

21

6,495,826.88

HR

08/06/2009

AIR FORCE

29

CAPT GAUTAM SHARMA

CAPTAIN

55

32

6,771,185.88

GRADUATE

2/9/2011

AIR FORCE

30

CAPT. VIVEK KULKARNI

Chief of
FlighT Safety

59

27

7,755,126.88

B Sc

03/02/2012

AIR INDIA

CHECK PILOT

10

13/04/2006

BSF

AICL
COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 619(4) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF AIR INDIA CHARTERS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2014.
The preparation of financial statements of Air India Charters Limited for the year ended 31 March 2014 in accordance
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956 is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. The Staturory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 619(2)
of the Companies Act, 1956 are responsible for expressing opinion on these financial statements under section 227 of
the Companies Act, 1956 based on independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed by their
professional body the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Audit Report dated 06 February 2015.
I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to review the report of the Statutory
Auditors on the accojnts of Air India Charter Limited for the year ended 31 March 2014 and as such have no comments
to make under section 619(4) of the Companies Act, 1956.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/(Parama Sen)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-II, Mumbai

Place : Mumbai
Date  : 9 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report To the Members of Air India Charters Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of “Air India Charters Limited” (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards
referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) read with the General Circular 15/2013
dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers the internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for qualified audit
opinion.
1.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i.

The financial statements related to financial year 2012-13 were audited by other independent auditor
and we have verified the opening balances relating to financial year 2013-14 on the basis of accounts
finalized by them and opening groupings and schedules as confirmed by the Management of the
Company. These opening balances are subject to qualifications by the previous auditors and we
have accepted them as it is. Financial impact of such qualifications, if any, cannot be ascertained.

ii.

As stated in Note No. (1)(C)(1)(i), the Company, since FY 2009-10, follows policy of capitalizing the
exchange difference on foreign currency long term borrowings, relating to acquisition of depreciable
assets and the same are depreciated over the remaining useful life of respective asset, including the
year, in which such exchange difference arises. Hence, such exchange difference of Rs. 2,169.09
million, in respect of financial year 2013-14 has been capitalized as at the beginning of the year
instead of end of the year. As a result, in current year, depreciation has been provided for the whole
year on such amount. This accounting policy is not in compliance with “AS 11 - The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” read with “AS-6 Depreciation Accounting” and Notification No.
G.S.R. 225(E) dated 31st March 2009 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. As such, depreciation
for the year, losses for the year and accumulated depreciation are overstated by Rs.138.01 million.
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2.

iii.

Note No. 34 and in other cases wherever the Company has undertaken transactions with holding
company, the existence of arm’s length relationship in such transactions has not been determined.
Precise impact on financial statements cannot be ascertained and we are unable to form an opinion
on the same.

iv.

We invite attention to Note No. (1)(C)(3) read with Note No.32 regarding balances of Inventories
which are maintained & controlled by Parent Company and report as under:
a.

With reference to Note No. 32(a) to (m), the Company does not have any control over the
recording & reporting on the Inventory Accounting System.

b.

Reconciliation of Inventory balances, as on 31 March 2014, as per books of accounts with
Balance confirmation from Inventory Accounting System (i.e. RAMCO) is not matching. This
has resulted into overstatement of inventory balance in the books of accounts by Rs. 95.70
million. Pending reconciliation, such differences have not been provided for in the books of
accounts.

c.

The Management has not conducted the physical verification of Inventories during as well as
at the year end.

d.

As regards Inventory lying with third parties, Management has neither conducted any physical
verification nor obtained confirmations for the balances as at the year end.

e.

The Management, based on the records available, has made an adhoc provision of Rs.284.10
million relating to consumption of Inventory/balances lying in intermediary account. We are
unable to comment on the adequacy and completeness or otherwise, of these provisions on
account of above mentioned observations.

f.

The cumulative impact of points (a) to (e) except (b) above, on the financial statements cannot
be ascertained and we are unable to form an opinion on the same.

v.

Reconciliation of foreign currency loan account “Secured S T Loan from Banks – FCNR” grouped
under “Long Term Secured Loans” with the Bank statement is not complete. This has resulted into
differences of Rs. 6.50 million and pending reconciliation, adjustment of the same has not been
given. As such, we are unable to comment upon the adequacy and correctness or otherwise of the
same.

vi.

We further report that in view of the observations as per paragraph (i) to (v) above, cumulative impact
to the extent quantifiable is as follows,
a.

Depreciation for the year and Accumulated Depreciation is overstated by Rs. 138.1 million,

b.

Losses for the year & Accumulated Losses are overstated by Rs. 35.8 million.

c.

Inventories are overstated by Rs. 95.7 million.

d.

The Earnings per share as computed Note No. 55 is subject to observations contained
herein.

Qualified Opinion

Subject to the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above and unascertainable impact thereof, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India: i.

In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2014;
13
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3.

ii.

In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Loss for the year ended on that date;
and

iii.

In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We also invite attention to the following :
i.

Note no. 37, 39, 51, 52 and 53 regarding confirmations and reconciliation including matching of debits/
credits in various balances in other assets / liabilities accounts at certain locations and pending reconciliation
of account payables & account receivables, balances of PSU Oil Companies and intermediary accounts.
The precise financial impact of the same on the accounts / financial statements is not ascertainable. We
are unable to comment on the impact of adjustments arising out of reconciliation/confirmation of such
balances, on the Financial Statements.

ii.

Note No. 43 regarding Depreciation on Fixed Assets – the method of providing depreciation on aircrafts ,
airframe equipment and simulator was changed during the year 2007-08 by considering the estimated life
of aircraft as 20 years as against 17 years considered in years prior to that. The Company has obtained
certificate of remaining useful life from concerned aircraft manufacturer but has not made revised application
to Company Law Board (CLB) for permission to use this estimate of useful life. However, the Companies
Act, 2013, now, has revised the useful life of Aircrafts (including airframe equipment and simulator) to 20
years with effect from 1 April, 2014. As such,the effect thereof will be given in the financial statements for
the year 2014-15 onwards. Non availability of such permission from CLB for current year has technically
resulted into undercharging depreciation by Rs.412.7 million.

iii.

Note No. 61, regarding the financial statements of the Company having been prepared on a going
concern basis, not with standing the fact that its net worth is completely eroded. The appropriateness
of the said basis is, interalia, dependent on the Company’s ability to improve operational and financial
performance.

iv.

Note No. 24(a) which describes the uncertainty related to the non-provision of interest and penalty, if any,
payable towards outstanding dues for service tax, tax deducted at source.

v.

Necessary certificate as prescribed under SA 402 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) in respect of Revenue Reconciliation, outsourced to an Outside Agency, as stated in Note
63 & Inventory Accounting System being handled by parent company were not made available for Audit
Purposes.

vi.

Note No.58 regarding non-disclosure of information as prescribed in clauses (a) to (e) except (d) (which
is not applicable to the Company) of Note 5(viii) of Part II of Revised Schedule VI of the Companies Act,
1956.  

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course
of our Audit, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order, to the
extent applicable to the Company.
4.

As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that : (a)

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit, except as indicated in the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph;
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(b)

Except as indicated in the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion
proper books of account as required by law, have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and proper information / returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have
been received from Business Areas / Stations / Locations;

(c)

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of accounts and with the returns received from Business Areas / Stations not
visited by us;

(d)

Except as indicated in the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion,
the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards referred to in sub section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the General
Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013;

(e)

The Company being a Government Company as defined in section 617 of the Act, is exempted from the
applicability of the provision of the section 274(1) (g) of the said Act, vide Circular No 2/5/2001/CL.V General Circular No. 8/2002 dated 22 March 2002 issued by the Ministry of Law, Justice and Company
Affairs.

For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit
Chartered Accountants,
FRN. : 105215W

Sd/(Suhrud G. Lele)
Partner
M.No : 121162
Place : Mumbai
Date : 6 February 2015
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ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Annexure referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Air India Charters
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2014.
As required by the Companies (Auditor Report) Order, 2003 and amendments thereto and according to the information
and explanations given to us during the course of the audit and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as
were considered appropriate we report that:
I.

II.

III.

In respect of the fixed assets,
a.

The records relating to fixed assets including rotables maintained by the Company are inadequate
with reference to locations of the assets thereof. The Company has not yet updated fair value of
assets in the Fixed Assets register at certain locations and it is informed by the Management that
the same is in process. Further, the reconciliation of Fixed Assets Register for aircraft rotables and
other fixed assets with financial records is stated to be in progress.

b.

The Company has a program of Physical verification of fixed assets on rotational basis so that every
asset is verified once every two years which in our opinion is adequate. It is observed that during
the biennial period 2012-14, physical verification of fixed assets has not been conducted. Material
discrepancies, if any, may have remained undetected & unadjusted. We are unable to comment upon
the precise financial impact of the same.

c.

In our opinion, the Company has not disposed off a substantial part of its fixed assets during the year and
therefore do not affect the going concern assumptions.

In respect of inventories,
a.

The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory on rotational basis so that complete
inventory is verified once every two years. However, it is observed that physical verification of
inventory for the biennial period 2012-14, is still in process.

b.

The procedures designed by the management of the Company, in our opinion, are adequate
considering the size of the Company and nature of its business however as mentioned in clause (a)
the same are not being followed effectively.

c.

As informed to us, the Inventory and its records are being managed and controlled by the Holding
Company (Air India Ltd.) and are certified by them as adequate. In light of qualifications mentioned
in Paragraph 6 (iv) in the auditor’s report, we are unable to comment upon adequacy or otherwise
of such records. It is observed that physical verification of inventory for the biennial period
2012-14, is still in process. Further, as stated in Note No. 32(g), accounting entries for the discrepancies
identified by Internal Auditors of the holding company will be carried out in due course by the
Management. Pending completion of physical verification process, material discrepancies, if any,
may have remained undetected & unadjusted.

In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, granted or taken by the Company to/from companies, firm or other
parties covered in the Register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956:
a.

Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. However, the Company has
been maintaining current account of holding company in its books and different sums are paid as well
as received to/from holding company during the course of business of the Company. Revenue share
and interest on outstanding balance in current account, as per agreed terms with the holding company,
is also credited to this current account. This balance, as informed to us, is unsecured in nature. The
maximum & minimum balances outstanding during the year are Rs. 18,320 million and Rs.14,435 million
respectively.

b.

The account with holding company is operated as current account in which sums are paid/ received during
the normal course of business. In respect of such account,
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IV.

i.

As per the agreed terms, the Company also pays interest on the outstanding balance as at the end of
the financial year. The rate of interest and other terms and conditions, prima facie, are not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

ii.

In absence of specific information, we are unable to comment upon the regularity or otherwise
of payment of principal and interest and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the
Company for repayment of overdue amount of more than Rs. One Lakh.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Internal Control
procedures, commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, needs to be
prescribed, followed and strengthened in respect of the fixed assets.
As regards to Inventory, in view of the fact that procurement, consumption, physical custody is totally
controlled by the Holding Company. Further, the Company has not obtained the necessary certificate as
prescribed under SA 402 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in respect of Inventory
Accounting System. Hence we are unable to comment on the adequacy of Internal Control system of the
same.
The management needs to take a corrective action on continuing weaknesses in Internal Control system.
The financial statements are subject to Clause 6 & 8 of the auditor’s report which gives details of
qualifications in respect of Inventory, Fixed Assets.

V.

Based on the Audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we are of the opinion that there are no particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 that need to be entered in the register required to be maintained under that section. Hence
the question of commenting whether the transactions made in pursuant of such contracts or arrangements, were
made at prices which are reasonable having regards to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time does not
arise.

VI.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the sections 58A, 58AA or any
other relevant provision of the Act and the rules framed there under any directives report issued by the Reserve
Bank of India. Therefore the provision of the Clause (VI) of paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2003 is not applicable to the Company.

VII.

In our opinion, the scope of Internal Audit function is commensurate with the size and nature of the
business of the Company, however there is a scope for improvement in terms of timely performance,
reporting and compliance to make this function more effective.

VIII. The Central Government has not prescribed for maintenance of cost records under section 209 (1) (d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 for the Company. Therefore the provision of the Clause (VIII) of paragraph 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the Company.
IX.

In respect of the statutory dues:
a.

According to the records of the Company, the undisputed statutory dues have been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities except for the following:
i.

Regarding TDS - In absence of proper linkage between deductions and deposits of Income
tax deducted at source and reconciliations of balances outstanding and due to recording
expenses on payment basis in the books, year-end recording of expenses in books, we are
not in a position to offer any comments, including delay if any.

ii.

Regarding non deduction of TDS – TDS to the tune of Rs. 162 million, under section 194A has
not been done in respect of Payment of Interest to holding company.

iii.

Regarding liability of Service Tax under Reverse Charge Mechanism - Company has not
calculated and paid the liability under Reverse Charge Mechanism of Service Tax. In absence
of adequate details, precise impact of such liability cannot be ascertained and we are unable
to comment upon the same.
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iv.

Regarding non reversal of service tax input credit under Rule 6 (3) of Cenvat Credit Rules,
2004 – Company is not maintaining separate books of accounts for exempted and taxable
services respectively. As such, Rule 6 (3) of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 requires the Company
to reverse service tax input credit to the extent of 6% on the amount of Input Credit, after
adjusting abatement. Company has reversed such input credit but details for the same are not
available for verification purposes. In absence of adequate details, adequacy or otherwise of
such reversal cannot be ascertained and we are unable to form an opinion on the same.

v.

In respect of the statutory dues, if any, at foreign stations, since the records are kept at
respective stations and which were not available for verification during the audit, we are unable
to comment whether the dues are timely deposited.

vi.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not covered by the provisions
of laws relating to Investor Education and Protection Fund and Employees State Insurance.

vii.

As informed to us and based on explanations received, the Company has deducted Professional
Tax in respect of few locations but the same has not been deposited to the concerned
authorities. Unpaid amount of Professional Tax as on 31 March 2014 is Rs.1.39 million.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of above except for Professional Tax, as mentioned in clause (vii) above, which were
in arrears, as at 31 March, 2014 for a period of more than six months from the date on which
they became payable.
b.

According to the records of the Company and information and explanation given to us there are no dues
outstanding in respect of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cess or other statutory dues on account of
any dispute except as mentioned below:
Sr.
No.

Name of Statute

Amount
(Rs. in millions)

1

Tax deducted at Source as per Income tax
for FY 2006-07 to FY 2013-14

115.4

2

Tax deducted as Source as per Income tax
for FY 2009-10 and  FY 2010-11

35.5

3

Service Tax for FY 2005-06 to FY 2013-14

513.3

4

Customs Duty for various transactions

4.7

Nature and form where
dispute is pending
Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax department
Directorate General of Central
Excise Intelligence
Customs & Excise Dept.

X.

The accumulated losses (inclusive of deferred tax liability) of the Company, as at the end of the financial
year exceed fifty percent of its net worth. There are cash losses during the financial year covered by our
Audit and there were cash losses during immediately preceding financial year also. As per representations
given by the management, there is no adverse impact on going concern assumption.

XI.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its dues to banks and financial institutions.

XII.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans or advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures or other securities. Therefore,
the provision of the Clause (XII) of paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable
to the Company.

XIII. In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund/ society. Therefore, the provision of the
Clause (XIII) of paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the Company.
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XIV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a dealer or
trader in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the provision of clause 4(XIV) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.
XV.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loan taken by others from banks and financial institutions. Accordingly, the provision of clause 4(XV)
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

XVI. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the term loans have been applied for
the purpose for which they were raised.
XVII. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination the
Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that no fund raised on short term basis have been used for long term
investment.
XVIII. During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares. Accordingly, the provision of
clause 4 (XVIII) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.
XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not created securities or
charge in respect of unsecured debentures aggregating Rs.950 million.
XX. During the year the Company has not raised any monies by way of public issue. Accordingly, the provision of
clause 4 (XX) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.
XXI. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
have not come across any instances of material frauds on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year
nor we have been informed of such cases by the management.

For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit
Chartered Accountants,
FRN. : 105215W
Sd/(Suhrud G. Lele)
Partner
M.No : 121162
Place : Mumbai
Date : 6 February 2015
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Management comments to the Auditors’ Report of the Statutory Auditors For the Financial Year 2013-14
Sr. No.
1.

Audit Observation

Management comments

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of “Air This is a statement of fact
India Charters Limited” (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

2.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Management is responsible for the preparation of these This is a statement of fact
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”)
read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September
2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

3.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial This is a statement of fact
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that
we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

4

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence This is a statement of fact
about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

5

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient This is a statement of fact
and appropriate to provide a basis for qualified audit opinion.
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Sr. No.
6

Audit Observation

Management comments

Basis for Qualified Opinion –
i. The financial statements related to financial year 2012-13 This is a statement of fact
were audited by other independent auditor and we have
verified the opening balances relating to financial year
2013-14 on the basis of accounts finalized by them and
opening groupings and schedules as confirmed by the
Management of the Company. These opening balances
are subject to qualifications by the previous auditors and
we have accepted them as it is. Financial impact of such
qualifications, if any, cannot be ascertained.
ii. As stated in Note No. (1)(C)(1)(i), the Company, since
FY 2009-10, follows policy of capitalizing the exchange
difference on foreign currency long term borrowings,
relating to acquisition of depreciable assets and the same
are depreciated over the remaining useful life of respective
asset, including the year, in which such exchange
difference arises. Hence, such exchange difference of
Rs. 2,169.09 million, in respect of financial year 2013-14
has been capitalized as at the beginning of the year instead
of end of the year. As a result, in current year, depreciation
has been provided for the whole year on such amount.
This accounting policy is not in compliance with “AS 11 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” read
with “AS-6 Depreciation Accounting” and Notification
No. G.S.R. 225(E) dated 31 March 2009 issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs. As such, depreciation for the year,
losses for the year and accumulated depreciation are
overstated by Rs. 138.01 million.

The accounting of depreciation on the
exchange impact capitalized during the
year since 2009-10 from the beginning of
the year, is as per Accounting Policy of
the Company. However in view of audit
observation, this aspect will be looked into
for the compliance of AS-11 and AS-6

iii. Note No. 34 and in other cases wherever the Company
has undertaken transactions with holding company, the
existence of arm’s length relationship in such transactions
has not been determined. Precise impact on financial
statements cannot be ascertained and we are unable to
form an opinion on the same.

The company is in process of identifying
the areas where in the arm’s length
relationship with the holding company as
well as associate companies is required to
be maintained. Suitable action will be taken
during the FY 2014-15 wherever required.

iv. We invite attention to Note No. (1)(C)(3) read with Note
No.32 regarding balances of Inventories which are
maintained & controlled by Parent Company and report
as under:
a. With reference to Note No. 32(a) to (m), the Company does a. The required accounting of inventory
is based on the information generated
not have any control over the recording & reporting on the
through RAMCO.
Inventory Accounting System.
b. Reconciliation of Inventory balances, as on 31 March b. c & d. The physical verification of
2014, as per books of accounts with Balance confirmation
migrated inventory is still in the
from Inventory Accounting System (i.e. RAMCO) is
progress and necessary accounting
not matching. This has resulted into overstatement of
action towards the differences, if any,
inventory balance in the books of accounts by Rs. 95.70
will be taken after the same is verified.
million. Pending reconciliation, such differences have not
been provided for in the books of accounts.
c. The Management has not conducted the physical verification
of Inventories during as well as at the year end.
d. As regards Inventory lying with third parties, Management
has neither conducted any physical verification nor obtained
confirmations for the balances as at the year end.
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Sr. No.

Audit Observation

Management comments

e. The Management, based on the records available, has e. As per practice, a provision of Rs. 192.4
made an adhoc provision of Rs.284.10 million relating to
Million has been made in respect, being
consumption of Inventory/balances lying in intermediary
50% of expendables, which were issued
account. We are unable to comment on the adequacy
on work orders which remained opened
and completeness or otherwise, of these provisions on
as on year end. Also an amount of
account of above mentioned observations.
Rs. 91.7 Million, an ad-hoc provision
has been made against the value /
f. The cumulative impact of points (a) to (e) except (b) above,
quantity correction, which were lying
on the financial statements cannot be ascertained and we
in various intermediate accounts. The
are unable to form an opinion on the same.
company is of the opinion that such
provisions are adequate.
v. Reconciliation of foreign currency loan account “Secured
S T Loan from Banks – FCNR” grouped under “Long Term
Secured Loans” with the Bank statement is not complete.
This has resulted into differences of Rs. 6.50 million and
pending reconciliation, adjustment of the same has not
been given. As such, we are unable to comment upon the
adequacy and correctness or otherwise of the same.

All the working capital loan account will
be looked into in detail during the FY
2014-15 and the matter will be taken up
with the respective banks and suitable
action will be taken.
Also during the FY 2014-15, the Company
has proposed that the Internal Auditors
of the Company to review all the working
capital Loan Account, as a special review
in their Scope of work.

vi. We further report that in view of the observations as per This is the summary of above mentioned
paragraph (i) to (v) above, cumulative impact to the extent Para i. to v. Please refer to the comments,
given for respective Para.
quantifiable is as follows,
a. Depreciation for the year and Accumulated Depreciation
is overstated by Rs. 138.1 million.
b. Losses for the year & Accumulated Losses are overstated
by Rs. 35.8 million.
c. Inventories are overstated by Rs.95.7 million.
d. The Earnings per share as computed Note No. 55 is subject
to observations contained herein.
7.

Qualified Opinion Subject to the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above Audit comments are noted.
and unascertainable impact thereof, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India: i.

In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2014;

ii. In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the
Loss for the year ended on that date; and
iii. In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows
for the year ended on that date.
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Sr. No.
Audit Observation
8.
Emphasis of Matter -

Management comments

We also invite attention to the following –
i Note no. 37, 39, 51, 52 and 53 regarding confirmations and
reconciliation including matching of debits/credits in various
balances in other assets / liabilities accounts at certain locations
and pending reconciliation of account payables & account
receivables, balances of PSU Oil Companies and intermediary
accounts. The precise financial impact of the same on the
accounts / financial statements is not ascertainable. We are
unable to comment on the impact of adjustments arising out of
reconciliation/confirmation of such balances, on the Financial
Statements.
ii Note No. 43 regarding Depreciation on Fixed Assets – the
method of providing depreciation on aircrafts, airframe
equipment and simulator was changed during the year 2007-08
by considering the estimated life of aircraft as 20 years
as against 17 years considered in years prior to that. The
Company has obtained certificate of remaining useful life from
concerned aircraft manufacturer but has not made revised
application to Company Law Board (CLB) for permission to use
this estimate of useful life. However, the Companies Act, 2013,
now, has revised the useful life of Aircrafts (including airframe
equipment and simulator) to 20 years with effect from 1 April,
2014. As such, the effect thereof will be given in the financial
statements for the year 2014-15 onwards. Non availability of
such permission from CLB for current year has technically
resulted into undercharging depreciation by Rs.412.7 million.
iii Note No. 61, regarding the financial statements of the
Company having been prepared on a going concern basis,
notwithstanding the fact that its net worth is completely eroded.
The appropriateness of the said basis is, inter alia, dependent
on the Company’s ability to improve operational and financial
performance.
iv Note No. 24(a) which describes the uncertainty related to the
non-provision of interest and penalty, if any, payable towards
outstanding dues for service tax, tax deducted at source.

v Necessary certificate as prescribed under SA 402 issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in respect
of Revenue Reconciliation outsourced to an Outside Agency,
as stated in Note 63 & Inventory Accounting System being
handled by parent company were not made available for Audit
Purposes.
23

The accounts mentioned in this Para will
be looked into during 2014-15. There were
certain entries which were required to be
passed after closing of accounts of Holding
Company, these entries were passed
in the books of the company, however,
corresponding effect of same could not be
given in the books of accounts of holding
company in the same year. Necessary
rectification entries have already been
passed on 1 April 2014.
Since the Companies Act, 2013 has already
revised the Schedule VI allowing the
company to depreciate aircraft in 20 years
instead of 17 years earlier, the company
has not pursued the matter with CLB for
granting special permission.

During the current financial year, the
Operating Revenue of the company has
increased by 32% and also the EBIDTA has
increased by 152%. Also the company’s
operational and financial position is
showing further improving trend. As such,
the accounts have been prepared on
‘Going Concern’ basis.
As a matter of prudence the management
has disclosed the contingent liability in
respect of service tax on various fees paid
on external commercial borrowings. The
Company has deposited an amount of
Rs. 31.0 Million and the appeal of the
Company filed with CESAT has been
accepted. The liability on account of interest
and penalty is not considered above since
the same has not been charged / demanded
in the show cause notice.
As regard to required certificate under SA
402 issued by ICAI from the service provider
for Revenue Reconciliation System, further
efforts will be made to obtain the same
certificate during 2014-15.

AICL
Sr. No.

9.

10.

Audit Observation

Management comments
As regard to obtaining SA 402 certificate
prescribed by ICAI from the Holding
Company for managing inventory, the
Company is of the opinion that such
certificate is not required, since the
Inventory Management System – RAMCO
was procured for Holding and group of
companies and same is not to be treated
as outsourced to Holding Company.
vi Note No. 58 regarding non-disclosure of information as The matter will be pursued with Ministry of
prescribed in clauses (a) to (e) except (d) (which is not Corporate Affairs for granting exemption from
applicable to the Company) of Note 5(viii) of Part II of Revised complying with the discloser requirement in the
Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.  
Notes to Accounts.
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements –
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, and on the basis
of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of our Audit, we give in
the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
4 and 5 of the Order, to the extent applicable to the Company.
As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that : a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit, except as indicated in the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph;
b. Except as indicated in the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion proper books of
account as required by law, have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and
proper information / returns adequate for the purposes of our
audit have been received from Business Areas / Stations /
Locations;
c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of accounts and with the returns received from
Business Areas / Stations not visited by us;
d. Except as indicated in the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the Balance
Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in
sub section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956
read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September
2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of section
133 of the Companies Act 2013;
e. The Company being a Government Company as defined in This is a statement of fact.
section 617 of the Act, is exempted from the applicability of
the provision of the section 274(1) (g) of the said Act, vide
Circular No 2/5/2001/CL.V - General Circular No 8/2002 dated
22 March 2002 issued by the Ministry of Law, Justice and
Company Affairs.
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AICL
Annexure referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Air India
Charters Limited for the year ended 31 March 2014
Sr. Audit Observation
No.
I.

Management comments

In respect of the fixed assets,
a. The records relating to fixed assets including rotables This is a statement of fact.
maintained by the Company are inadequate with reference
to locations of the assets thereof. The Company has not yet
updated fair value of assets in the Fixed Assets register at
certain locations and it is informed by the Management that
the same is in process. Further, the reconciliation of Fixed
Assets Register for aircraft rotables and other fixed assets
with financial records is stated to be in progress.
b. The Company has a program of Physical verification of fixed The physical verification of fixed assets is
assets on rotational basis so that every asset is verified scheduled to be completed in FY 2014-15.
once every two years which in our opinion is adequate. It is
observed that during the biennial period 2012-14, physical
verification of fixed assets has not been conducted. Material
discrepancies, if any, may have remained undetected &
unadjusted. We are unable to comment upon the precise
financial impact of the same.
c. In our opinion, the Company has not disposed off a substantial This is a statement of fact.
part of its fixed assets during the year and therefore do not affect
the going concern assumptions.

II.

In respect of inventories,
a. The Company has a program of physical verification of This is a statement of fact.
inventory on rotational basis so that complete inventory is
verified once every two years. However, it is observed that
physical verification of inventory for the biennial period
2012-14, is still in process.
b. The procedures designed by the management of the This is a statement of fact.
Company, in our opinion, are adequate considering the
size of the Company and nature of its business however
as mentioned in clause (a) the same are not being followed
effectively.
c. As informed to us, the Inventory and its records are This is a statement of fact.
being managed and controlled by the Holding Company
(Air India Ltd.) and are certified by them as adequate.
In light of qualifications mentioned in Paragraph 6 (iv)
in the auditor’s report, we are unable to comment upon
adequacy or otherwise of such records. It is observed that
physical verification of inventory for the biennial period
2012-14, is still in process. Further, as stated in Note No.
32(g), accounting entries for the discrepancies identified
by Internal Auditors of the holding company will be carried
out in due course by the Management. Pending completion
of physical verification process, material discrepancies, if
any, may have remained undetected & unadjusted.
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Sr. Audit Observation
No.
III.

Management comments

In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, granted or taken by
the Company to/from companies, firm or others parties covered in
the Register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956:
a. Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured This is a statement of fact.
to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.
However, the Company has been maintaining current account
of holding company in its books and different sums are paid
as well as received to/from holding company during the course
of business of the Company. Revenue share and interest on
outstanding balance in current account, as per agreed terms
with the holding company, is also credited to this current account.
This balance, as informed to us, is unsecured in nature. The
maximum & minimum balances outstanding during the year are
Rs. 18,320 million and Rs.14,435 million respectively.
b. The account with holding company is operated as current This is a statement of fact.
account in which sums are paid/ received during the normal
course of business. In respect of such account,
i.

As per the agreed terms, the Company also pays interest on the This is a statement of fact.
outstanding balance as at the end of the financial year. The rate
of interest and other terms and conditions, prima facie, are not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

ii. In absence of specific information, we are unable to This is a statement of fact.
comment upon the regularity or otherwise of payment of
principal and interest and whether reasonable steps have
been taken by the Company for repayment of overdue
amount of more than Rs. One Lakh.
IV.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Internal Control procedures,
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business, needs to be prescribed, followed and
strengthened in respect of the fixed assets.
As regards to Inventory, in view of the fact that procurement,
consumption, physical custody is totally controlled by the
Holding Company. Further, the Company has not obtained the
necessary certificate as prescribed under SA 402 of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in respect of Inventory
Accounting System. Hence we are unable to comment on the
adequacy of Internal Control system of the same.
The management needs to take a corrective action on
continuing weaknesses in Internal Control system. The financial
statements are subject to Clause 6 & 8 of the auditor’s report
which gives details of qualifications in respect of Inventory,
Fixed Assets.
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This is a statement of fact.
As regard to obtaining SA 402 certificate
prescribed by ICAI from the Holding
Company for managing inventory, the
Company is of the opinion that such
certificate is not required, since the
Inventory Management System – RAMCO
was procured for Holding and group of
companies and same is not to be treated
as outsourced to Holding Company.

AICL
Sr. Audit Observation
No.

Management comments

V.

Based on the Audit procedures applied by us and according to the This is a statement of fact.
information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that
there are no particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 that need to be entered in
the register required to be maintained under that section. Hence the
question of commenting whether the transactions made in pursuant
of such contracts or arrangements, were made at prices which are
reasonable having regards to the prevailing market prices at the
relevant time does not arise.

VI.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public This is a statement of fact.
within the meaning of the sections 58A, 58AA or any other relevant
provision of the Act and the rules framed there under any directives
report issued by the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore the provision
of the Clause (VI) of paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the Company.

VII. In our opinion, the scope of Internal Audit function is This is a statement of fact.
commensurate with the size and nature of the business of the
Company, however there is a scope for improvement in terms
of timely performance, reporting and compliance to make this
function more effective.
VIII. The Central Government has not prescribed for maintenance of This is a statement of fact.
cost records under section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956
for the Company. Therefore the provision of the Clause (VIII) of
paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not
applicable to the Company.
IX.

In respect of the statutory dues:
a. According to the records of the Company, the undisputed
statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities except for the following:
i.

Regarding TDS - In absence of proper linkage between This aspect will be looked into during the
deductions and deposits of Income tax deducted at source FY 2014-15
and reconciliations of balances outstanding and due to
recording expenses on payment basis in the books, yearend recording of expenses in books, we are not in a position
to offer any comments, including delay if any.

ii. Regarding non deduction of TDS – TDS to the tune of Since the Holding Company has charged
Rs. 162 million, under section 194A has not been done in the interest on ‘Cost Recovery Basis’
respect of Payment of Interest to holding company.
the Company is of the opinion that such
payment of interest is not subject to the
provision of TDS.
iii. Regarding liability of Service Tax under Reverse Charge
Mechanism - Company has not calculated and paid the
liability under Reverse Charge Mechanism of Service Tax. In
absence of adequate details, precise impact of such liability
cannot be ascertained and we are unable to comment upon
the same.
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A detailed analysis of liability of service tax
under ‘Reverse Charge Mechanism’ will be
carried out during 2014-15. However the
Company is of the opinion that such impact
would not be material.

AICL
Sr. Audit Observation
No.

Management comments

iv. Regarding non reversal of service tax input credit under
Rule 6 (3) of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 – Company is not
maintaining separate books of accounts for exempted
and taxable services respectively. As such, Rule 6 (3) of
Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 requires the Company to reverse
service tax input credit to the extent of 6% on the amount
of Input Credit, after adjusting abatement. Company has
reversed such input credit but details for the same are not
available for verification purposes. In absence of adequate
details, adequacy or otherwise of such reversal cannot be
ascertained and we are unable to form an opinion on the
same.
v. In respect of the statutory dues, if any, at foreign stations,
since the records are kept at respective stations and which
were not available for verification during the audit, we are
unable to comment whether the dues are timely deposited.
vi. According to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not covered by the provisions of laws relating to
Investor Education and Protection Fund and Employees State
Insurance.
vii. As informed to us and based on explanations received,
the Company has deducted Professional Tax in respect of
few locations but the same has not been deposited to the
concerned authorities. Unpaid amount of Professional Tax
as on 31 March 2014 is Rs.1.39 million.
viii. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of above except
for Professional Tax, as mentioned in clause (vii) above,
which were in arrears, as at 31 March 2014 for a period of
more than six months from the date on which they became
payable.
b. According to the records of the Company and information and
explanation given to us there are no dues outstanding in respect
of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues on account of any dispute except as mentioned below:
Sr.
No.

Name of Statute

Rs. in
millions

1

Tax deducted at Source
as per Income tax
for FY 2006-07 to FY
2013-14

115.4

2

Tax
deducted
as
Source as per Income
tax for FY 2009-10 and  
FY 2010-11

35.5

3

Service Tax for FY
2005-06 to FY 2013-14

513.3

4

Customs
Duty
for
various transactions

4.7

The matter has been referred to the Service
Tax Consultants and necessary action will
be taken accordingly during 2014-15.

There had not been any default in making
payment of statutory dues at any foreign
station.
This is a statement of fact.

The Company has made efforts to deposit
the Professional Tax deducted from various
employees, however the concerned
authorities are not accepting the payment.
This is a statement of fact.

Nature and form where
dispute is pending
Commissioner of Income Tax These matters are being adequately
(Appeals)
represented by the Tax Consultants of

Income Tax department

Directorate General of Central
Excise Intelligence
Customs & Excise Dept.
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the Company. As the company is of firm
opinion that such amount is not payable,
as a matter of prudence, same has been
disclosed as Contingent Liability.

AICL
Sr. Audit Observation
No.

Management comments

X.

The accumulated losses (inclusive of deferred tax liability) This is a statement of fact.
of the Company, as at the end of the financial year exceed
fifty percent of its net worth. There are cash losses during
the financial year covered by our Audit and there were cash
losses during immediately preceding financial year also. As
per representations given by the management, there is no
adverse impact on going concern assumption.

XI.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation This is a statement of fact.
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its
dues to banks and financial institutions.

XII. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation This is a statement of fact.
given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances
on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
or other securities. Therefore the provision of the Clause (XII) of
paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not
applicable to the Company.
XIII. In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual This is a statement of fact.
benefit fund/ society. Therefore the provision of the Clause (XIII) of
paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not
applicable to the Company.
XIV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations This is a statement of fact.
given to us, the Company is not a dealer or trader in shares,
securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 4(XIV) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.
XV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations This is a statement of fact.
given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loan
taken by others from banks and financial institutions. Accordingly,
the provision of clause 4(XV) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.
XVI. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations This is a statement of fact.
given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for
which they were raised.
XVII. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations This is a statement of fact.
given to us and on an overall examination the Balance Sheet of the
Company, we report that no fund raised on short term basis have
been used for long term investment.
XVIII. During the year the Company has not made any preferential This is a statement of fact.
allotment of shares. Accordingly, the provision of clause 4 (XVIII) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to
the Company.
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Sr. Audit Observation
No.

Management comments

XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us, the This is a statement of fact.
Company has not created securities or charge in respect of
unsecured debentures aggregating Rs.950 million.
XX.

During the year the Company has not raised any monies by way This is a statement of fact.
of public issue. Accordingly, the provision of clause 4 (XX) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the
Company.

XXI. During the course of our examination of the books and records of This is a statement of fact.
the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have not come across any instances
of material frauds on or by the Company, noticed or reported
during the year nor we have been informed of such cases by the
management.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Particulars

(Rupees in Million)

Note
No.

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :

As at
March 31, 2014

Shareholders’ Funds
a) Share Capital
b) Reserves and Surplus

2
3

300.0
(23,705.4)

Non-current Liabilities
a) Long Term Borrowings
b) Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
c) Long Term Provisions

4
52
6

20,389.8
98.6

Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings
b) Trade Payables
c) Other Current Liabilities
d) Short Term Provisions

7
5
5
6

10,578.3
5,700.9
25,115.0
4.5

TOTAL

(23,405.4)

As at
March 31, 2013
300.0
(20,231.3)

20,488.4

41,398.7
38,481.7

21,643.7
62.3
10,585.7
6,186.2
20,516.2
1.8

(19,931.3)

21,706.0

37,289.9
39,064.6

II ASSETS :

Non-current Assets
a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets
(ii) Intangible Assets
(iii) Capital Work-in-Progress
(iv) Intangible Assets under development

8

b) Long Term Loans and Advances
c) Long Term Trade Receivables
d) Other Non-Current Assets

9
10
11

34,148.3
8.5
34,156.8
335.2
-

Current Assets
a) Inventories
b) Trade Receivables
c) Cash and Bank Balances
d) Short Term Loans and Advances
e) Other Current Assets

12
10
13
9
11

1,516.0
352.4
803.1
1,317.8
0.4

TOTAL

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

34,492.0

3,989.7
38,481.7

34,135.6
8.9
34,144.5
314.2
848.7
413.8
144.1
3,198.9
0.4

34,458.7

4,605.9
39,064.6

1
24-71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 105215W
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162
Place : Delhi
Date : 6 February 2015

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/Rohit Nandan
Chairman
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Sd/Dr. Shefali Juneja
Director

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

AICL
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Particulars
I Revenue
1. Revenue from Operation
i) Scheduled Traffic Services
ii) Non-Schedule Traffic Services
2. Handling, Servicing and Incidental Revenue
Operating Revenue
II 3. Other Income (Net)
III
Total Revenue
IV Expenses
1. Aircraft Fuel & Oil
2. Operation Expenses
3. Employee Benefit Expenses
4. Finance Costs
5. Depreciation and Amortization Expense
6. Other Expenses
7. Prior Period Adjustments (Net)
Total Expenses
V Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional and
Extraordinary
Items and Tax
VI
Exceptional Items
VII Profit / (Loss) before Extraordinary Items
and Tax
VIII
Extra Ordinary Items (Net)
IX Profit / (Loss) before Tax
X
Tax Expenses :
XI Profit / (Loss) after Tax for the year
XII Earning per Share of Rs. 10 each
- Basic and Diluted
Significant Accounting Policies
Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

Note
No.
14
15

2013-14

20,645.2
-

20,645.2
48.8
20,694.0
2.1
20,696.1

16

(I+II)

15,532.0
-

15,532.0
76.8
15,608.8
1.6
15,610.4
8,801.1
3,846.3
1,455.5
2,559.8
2,136.1
616.8
36.5
19,452.1
(3,841.7)

(25.0)
(3,453.3)

330.1
(3,511.5)

(3,453.3)
(3,453.3)

(3,511.5)
(3,511.5)

(1,151.11)

(1,170.50)

(III-IV)
23

(VII+VIII)
(IX-X)
55
1
24-71

2012-13

10,521.4
5,017.1
1,583.4
4,156.0
2,280.1
446.4
120.0
24,124.4
(3,428.3)

17
18
19
20
21
22

(V+VI)

(Rupees in Million)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 105215W
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/Rohit Nandan
Chairman

Place : Delhi
Date : 6 February 2015
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Sd/Dr. Shefali Juneja
Director

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

AICL
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Particulars

(Rupees in Million)

2013-14

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit /(-) Loss Before Taxation
Adjustments for :
Depreciation
Finance Cost
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Assets
Interest on Bank & Other Deposits

2012-13

(3,453.3)
2,280.2
4,156.0
0.0
(2.1)

Cash surplus/(-) defecit before variation in Net Working
Changes in Working Capital
(-) Increase / Decrease in Trade Receivable
(-) Increase / Decrease in Loans & Advances - Long Term
(-) Increase / Decrease in Loans & Advances - Short Term
(-) Increase/Decrease in Other Assets
(-) Increase/Decrease in Other Current Assets
(-) Increase / Decrease in Inventories
Increase /(-)Decrease in Current Liabilities & Provisions
Long Term provision
Trade payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short Term provison

196.9
855.6
(3,074.8)
(0.0)
(313.4)

36.3
(485.2)
4,598.9
2.7

26.3
1,737.3
5,110.8
(1.5)

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Intangible Assets
Capitalisation of Capital work in progress
Proceeds from Fixed Assets
Interest received on Bank & Other Deposits
Net cash (-) outflow / Inflow from Investing Activities

(144.3)
2.1

Finance Cost
Write back of excess Tax of earlier year
Repayment of Aircraft Loans
Net cash (-) outflow / Inflow from Financing Activities
Foreign Exchange Impact of Working capital Loan
Foreign Exchange Impact of Aircraft Loan
Net Increase / (-) Decrease in Cash & Cash equivalents
Add : Cash at the beginning of the year
Cash at the end of the year

(4,156.0)
(3,010.6)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2,136.1
2,491.6
0.0
(1.6)

61.4
(21.1)
1,881.1
(0.0)
(667.2)

Net cash (-) outflow / Inflow from Operations

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

6,434.1
2,980.8

(3,519.6)

5,406.8
8,387.6

(142.2)

(7,166.6)
1,749.3
(2,169.1)
658.9
144.2
803.1

(6.8)
(8.9)
4.8
1.6
(2,491.6)
(3,358.9)

4,626.2
1,106.5

4,537.3
5,643.8

(9.2)

(5,850.5)
68.2
(147.8)
291.9
144.2

1

The cash flow statement has been prepaired under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard 3
(AS-3) on ‘Cash Flow Statements’ and presents cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.

2

Cash and cash equivalent includes Fixed deposits of Rs 11.1 Million (Previous year Rs 10.6 Million) which are not
available for free use due to Lien.

For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 105215W
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/Rohit Nandan
Chairman

Place : Delhi
Date : 6 February 2015
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Sd/Dr. Shefali Juneja
Director

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

AICL
NOTE FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTE “1” : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A.

Corporate Information
Air India Charters Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Air India Limited. It commenced airline operations on
April 29, 2005 with a brand name “Air India Express”. The Company mainly operates between Tier-2 and Tier-3
cities in India and destinations in Gulf & South East Asia. Presently company has a fleet of 21 Boeing 737-800 NG
out of which 17 are owned and 4 are on dry lease.

B.

Accounting Convention
i)

These Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern concept on accrual basis (except as
specifically stated) under historical cost convention and are in compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles and the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.

ii)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between the actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which results are known / materialized.

iii)

The Company being in service sector, there is no specific operating cycle, 12 months period has been
adopted as “the Operating Cycle” in-terms of the provisions of Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act,
1956.

C.

Significant Accounting Polices

1.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
(a)

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost.

(b)

(i)

Aircraft Fleet and Equipment are stated at purchase price. Other incidental costs including interest
wherever applicable are also capitalized up to the date of first commercial flight.

(ii)

Other Assets including aircraft rotables are capitalized and stated at historical cost.

(c)

Aircraft fleet and equipment under leases, in respect of which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the company are considered as Finance lease and are capitalized.

(d)

Credits allowed by the Manufacturers / Vendors are reviewed and evaluated by the Company and directly
identifiable credits are adjusted towards the Cost of the Asset. Other credits in the nature of Operational
Support are credited to the Profit & Loss Account.

(e)

Physical Verification of Assets is done on a rotational basis so that every asset is verified once in every two
years and the discrepancies observed in the course of the verification are adjusted in the year in which report
is submitted.

(f)

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method and in the manner prescribed in Schedule
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 except for the following:
i.

The next generation 737-800 aircraft are depreciated up to 95% of the block value over 20 years
instead 17 years.

ii.

Airframe Equipment - ‘Rotables’ & ‘Aero Engine Equipment Rotables’ relating to aircraft are also
depreciated up to 95% of the base value over the remaining average useful life of the fleet (737-800
aircraft is estimated as 20 years).

iii.

Depreciation on additions to other Fixed Assets and Rotables is provided for the full year in the year
of capitalization and no depreciation is provided in the year of disposal.
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2.

(g)

Assets of value not exceeding Rs. 5000/= in each case are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

(h)

Motor Cars are depreciated at 20% instead of 9.5% upto 95% of the value. Tractors have been treated as
Workshop Equipment.

(i)

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life.

(j)

The Exchange difference on Foreign Currency long term borrowing relating to acquisition of depreciable
assets is depreciated over the remaining useful life of related asset including the year in which such exchange
difference arises.

Impairment of Assets :
The carrying value of Fixed Asset is reviewed for impairment at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment.
If the carrying value of a Fixed Asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount an impairment loss is recognized
in the Profit & Loss Account and the Fixed Assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

3.

Inventory :
i.

Inventories are valued at cost or Net Realizable Value (NRV) whichever is lower. Cost is determined using
the weighted average formula.

ii.

Repairable spares (serviceable and unserviceable awaiting repairs) are those which have an economic life
greater than the operating cycle and can be reused after repairs and are expensed at the time of scrappage
and are however classified as Current Assets, which were hitherto charged to consumption at the time of
initial issue. The cost of repairs of such spares continues to be charged off as and when incurred.

iii.

Expendables / consumables are charged off at the time of initial issue except those meant for repairs of
repairable which are expensed when the work order is closed. At the year end estimated cost of expendables
/ consumables required for restoration of repairable are provided for in respect of open work orders.

iv.

Obsolescence provision for aircraft stores and spare parts:

v.
4.

a)

Provision is made for the non-moving inventory exceeding a period of five years (net of realizable
value of 5%) except for (b) & (c).

b)

Provision is made in full (net of estimated realizable value) for aircraft fleet which has been phased out
unless the same can be used in other Aircraft.

c)

Obsolescence provision in respect of inventories exclusively relating to aircraft on dry/wet lease,
is made on the basis of the completed lease period compared to the total lease period as at the
year end.

Obsolescence provision for non-aircraft stores and spares is made for non-moving inventory exceeding a
period of five years.

Provision for Doubtful Debts :
Debts pertaining to the Govt. / Govt. Departments / Public Sector Undertakings are provided for if they are more
than three years old except for debts which are known to be recoverable with certainty. All other debts are provided
for, if they are either more than three years old or specifically known to be doubtful.

5.

Foreign Currency Translation :
(a)

Current Assets and Current Liabilities :
Foreign currency denominated current assets and current liabilities balances at the year end are translated
at the year-end exchange rate circulated by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) and the
gains / losses arising out of fluctuations in exchange rates are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.
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(b)

Foreign Currency Loans:
The outstanding balances of foreign currency loans (including loans availed for acquisition of assets) at the
year end are translated at FEDAI Rate at the year end.
The Company has opted for accounting the exchange differences arising on reporting of long-term foreign
currency monetary items in line with Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2009 relating to
Accounting Standard 11 (AS-11) notified by Government of India on 31 March 2009 and further as amended
from time to time. Accordingly, the effect of exchange differences arising on settlement or reporting of long
term monetary items at the rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,
or reported in previous financial statements, is accounted by addition or deduction to the cost of the assets
so far as it relates to acquisition of depreciable capital assets and is depreciated over the balance life of the
asset calculated at the beginning of the year.

(c)

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Revenue and Expenditure Translations:
(i)

Based on the exchange rates published by the IATA, exchange rates are established for translating the
foreign currency revenue and expenditure transactions during the year and the exchange differences
are transferred to the Profit & Loss Account.

(ii)

Interline settlement with Airlines for transportation is carried out at the exchange rate published by IATA
for respective month.

Revenue Recognition :
(a)

Passenger Revenue is recognized on flown basis. At year end, the value of advance pax sales is assessed as
forward sales. Subsequent refunds/unclaimed tickets have been recognized in year of refund/cancellation.

(b)

Other Revenues are accounted on accrual basis.

Operating Leases :
(a)

Leases where assets are acquired without an option to purchase are considered as operating leases and
lease rentals payable for the year are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

(b)

Contributions made to lessors on account of Maintenance Reserve for which maintenance is expected to
arise during the lease period is treated as a Prepaid Expense. These contributions are expensed whenever
the maintenance expenditure arises or at the end of the expiry of the lease period.

Borrowing Cost :
(a)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
including capital work in progress are capitalized upto the time the asset gets ready for its intended use.

(b)

Borrowing cost other than stated above is treated as period cost.

Retirement Benefits :
(a)

Short term employee’s benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Profit and
Loss Account of the year in which the related service is rendered.

(b)

Post employment benefits are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account for the year in which
employee has rendered services. The estimated liability on account of long term benefits is discounted to the
current value using the yield on government bonds as the discounting rate.

(c)

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the
Profit and Loss Account.

Other Liabilities :
Liabilities which are more than three years old, are reversed unless such liabilities are specifically known to be
payable in the future.
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11.

Taxes on Income :
Provision for current tax is made in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between book and taxable profit using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. The deferred tax assets are recognized
and carried forward to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the assets will be realized in the future.

12.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :
Provisions are recognized in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations, the amount of which can be
reliably estimated.
Contingent liabilities are not provided for and are stated by way of notes to accounts. Contingent liabilities
are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company.

13.

Prior Period Items :
The Income and Expense which arise in the current period as a result of errors and omissions in preparation of
financial statements of one or more prior period are considered as Prior Period Items and are shown separately in
the financial statements.

14.

Prepaid Expenses/Liability for Expenses :
Pre-paid Expenses/Liabilities for expenses are recognized as under:
a)
b)

15.

Foreign Stations
- Rs.50,000/- and above in each case.
Domestic Stations - Rs.10,000/- and above in each case.

Cash Flow Statement :
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
regular operating, financing and investing activities of the company are segregated.
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NOTE “2” : SHARE CAPITAL

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

300.0

300.0

300.0

300.0

300.0

300.0

300.0

300.0

AUTHORISED

3.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each
(Previous Year : 3.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each)

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP SHARES

3.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each
(Previous Year : 3.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each)
(The entire Share Capital is held by Air India Limited, previously known as
National Aviation Co. of India Limited a company formed under the
Companies Act, 1956 and its nominees)

TOTAL

2.1

Share holding more than 5% of Equity Share Capital and Shares held by Holding-Ultimate Holding
Company.

Particulars
Name of the Shareholders

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

No.of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares

Air India Limited

3.0 Million

100.0

% of Holding

3.0 Million

100.0

(including shares held by nominee shareholders)
2.2

The Company has only one class of share having per value of Rs.100/- each with equal rights of voting and
dividend.

2.3

The Company has not issued any share pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.

2.4

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period is as given
below :

Particulars
Equity Shares (face value Rs.100/- each):
At the beginning of the period
Add : Allotted during the period
At the end of the period

(Number of Shares in
Millions)
2013-14
2012-13
3.0
3.0

3.0
3.0

(Share Value Rupees in
Millions)
2013-14
2012-13
300.0
300.0

300.0
300.0

2.5

During last five years no shares were issued as Bonus shares on capitalization of Reserve or Surpluses.

2.6

No shares were bought back in the last five years.
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NOTE “3” : RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
1.

As at
March 31, 2014

CAPITAL RESERVE

Balance as per Last Balance Sheet
Add : Additions during the year
Less : Transfer to the Statement of Profit and Loss as reduction
from Depreciation (Refer Note 20)
Closing Balance
2.

Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last financial statements
Loss for the year
Less : Appropriations
Net deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
TOTAL (1+2)

3.1

As at
March 31, 2013

364.4
20.9

385.3
20.9

343.5

364.4

(20,595.6)
(3,453.3)
(24,048.9)
(23,705.4)

(17,084.2)
(3,511.5)
(20,595.7)
(20,231.3)

Fixed Assets includes cost of B737 simulator received from Boeing has been credited to Capital Reserve. The
proportionate depreciation provided on the amount credited, has been charged to Capital Reserve.

NOTE “4” : LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Particulars

(Rupees in Million)

Non-Current

Current

As at
As at
As at
As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
I

Bonds / Debentures

950.0

950.0

-

-

2,493.8

2,500.0

-

-

b) from Banks (Unsecured)

-

-

-

-

c) from Other Parties (Secured)

-

-

-

-

d) from Other Parties (Unsecured)

-

-

-

-

16,946.0

18,193.7

3,134.6

2,728.4

20,389.8

21,643.7

3,134.6

2,728.4

7000 @ 9.13% Redeemable,
Non-convertible Debentures of face
value of Rs.10 lakhs each (Unsecured)
(Redeemable on 26 March 2020)
(Guaranteed by the Government of India)
II Term Loans
a) from Banks (Secured)

III Finance Lease Obligations
TOTAL

4.1

Bonds/Debentures
950 Redeemable, Unsecured Non-convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.1 Million each (Previous Year : 950
Debentures), are guaranteed by Government of India.Debentures are redeemable on 26 March 2020. Maturity
Profile and Rate of interest of Non-Convertible Debentures are set out below :
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(Rupees in Million)

Rate of Interest Payment Due Upto
9.38%

Repayment Mode

Security

Number of Installment
Balance

Bullet

GOI Guarantee

N.A.

26 March 2020

4.2

Term Loan of Rs. 2,500.0 Million (Previous Year Rs.2,500.0 Million) taken from Indian Overseas Bank against the
Corporate Guarantee given by Air India Limited (Holding Company) and the collateral security of A320 Aircraft
(VT-ESH) owned by Air India Limited (Holding Company) with payment term - Bullet payment due on 30 March
2016 i.e. five years after the first disbursement.

4.3

Finance Lease Obligations of Rs. 20,080.6 Million (Previous Year Rs.20,922.1 Million) are guaranteed by the
Government of India to the extent of Rs. 20,080.6 Million (Previous Year Rs.20,922.1 Million)

(Rupees in Million)

Name of
Loan
Exim Tr. I

Exim Tr. II
Exim Tr. III

4.4

Rate of
Interest
Fixed for each
loan ranging
between
2.46% to
2.73%
Libor-0.05 /
0.75
Libor + 0.93

Security

Number of
Installment
Balance as on
31.03.2014
106

Asset based
finance
structure
& GOI
Guarantee

Amount
Payable
1-5 Years

Total
Amount
Payable

10,007.7

Amount
Payable
beyond
5 Years
348.0

53

3,847.7

1,309.8

5,157.5

31

2,869.9
16,725.3

1,697.5
3,355.3

4,567.4
20,080.6

10,355.7

Current Maturities of long term borrowings have been grouped under the head Other Current Liabilities
(Refer Note 5)

NOTE “5” : LIABILITIES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

Other Current Liabilities
As at
As at
March 31, 2014
March 31, 2013
5,700.9
6,186.2

Trade Payable
(Refer Note No.28 regarding MSME)
Other Liabilities
a) Current maturities of finance lease obligations
b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
c) Forward Sales (Net) [Passenger / Cargo]
d) Advance from customers (Net)
e) Others Liabilities (Net)
i) Payable to Air India Ltd. (Holding Company)
ii) Others

(A)

5,700.9

6,186.2

(B)
TOTAL (A + B)

3,134.6
414.2
2,981.1
72.8
18,320.0
192.3
25,115.0
30,815.9

2,728.4
348.1
2,946.3
178.4
14,063.6
251.4
20,516.2
26,702.4

5.1

Trade payables includes payables for goods purchased, services received and other expenses.

5.2

Others includes Statutory Dues.
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NOTE “6” : PROVISIONS

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
Provision for Employee Benefits
a) Gratuity
b) Leave Encashment
c) Post Employment Medical and Other
Benefits
Other Provisions
a) Wealth Tax
b) Frequent Flyer Programme
c) Provision for Tax on Dividend

Long-term Provisions
As at
As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Short-term Provisions
As at
As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

73.5
25.1
-

42.2
20.1
-

2.7
1.8
-

0.8
1.0
-

(A)

98.6

62.3

4.5

1.8

(B)
TOTAL

98.6

62.3

4.5

1.8

NOTE “7” : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
I

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

Loans repayable on demand :
a)

from Banks in foreign currencies
(Unsecured)

1,198.3

1,085.7

b)

from Banks (Unsecured)

9,380.0

9,500.0

10,578.3

10,585.7

TOTAL
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NOTE “8” : FIXED ASSETS
Sr.
No.

Particulars

(Rupees in Million)
GROSS BLOCK

DEPRECIATION

NET BLOCK

As at Additions Deductions / As at
As at For the Deductions / Total Upto
As at
As at
April 01,
Adjustments March 31, April 01, year Adjustments March 31, March 31, March 31,
2013
2014
2013
2014
2014
2013

TANGIBLE ASSETS :
A. AIRCRAFT
FLEET &
ROTABLES
1 Airframes
25,647.5

1,487.6

-

27,135.1

5,870.2 1,339.9

-

7,210.1

19,925.0 19,777.3

16,643.3

681.4

-

17,324.7

3,845.3

850.0

-

4,695.3

12,629.4 12,798.0

3 Simulators & Link
Trainers

440.0

-

-

440.0

75.6

20.9

-

96.5

343.5

4 Airframe Rotables

1,408.6

139.9

-

1,548.5

430.8

73.6

-

504.4

1,044.1

977.9

180.8

-

-

180.8

29.3

8.6

-

37.9

142.9

151.5

44,320.1

2,309.0

-

46,629.2 10,251.1 2,293.0

-

12,544.0

Owned & Self
Operated
2 Aero Engines &
Power Plants
Owned & Self
Operated

5 Aero-Engine
Rotables
SUB TOTAL “A”

364.4

34,085.1 34,069.1

B. VEHICLES
9.0

-

-

9.0

5.2

0.6

-

5.8

3.3

3.9

9.0

-

-

9.0

5.2

0.6

-

5.8

3.3

3.9

36.8

0.3

-

37.1

6.9

2.4

-

9.3

27.8

29.8

22.3

-

-

22.3

8.1

1.5

-

9.6

12.7

14.2

3 Furniture &
Fixtures

7.0

2.2

-

9.2

2.0

0.5

-

2.5

6.7

5.0

4 Electrical Fittings
& Installations

0.1

-

-

0.1

-

-

-

-

0.1

0.1

5 Computer System

16.9

1.8

-

18.7

11.9

2.3

-

14.2

4.5

5.0

6 Office Appliances
& Equipment

10.1

-

-

10.1

1.5

0.5

-

2.0

8.1

8.5

SUB TOTAL “C”

93.1

4.3

-

97.5

30.5

7.1

-

37.6

59.9

62.7

44,422.2

2,313.3

-

46,735.7 10,286.8 2,300.7

-

12,587.4

9.4

-

-

0.4

-

0.9

44,431.6

2,313.3

-

46,745.1 10,287.3 2,301.1

-

12,588.3

42,893.5

1,538.2

-

44,431.7

-

10,287.2

1. Vehicles
SUB TOTAL “B”
C. OTHER- FIXED
ASSETS
1 Workshop
Equipment,
Instruments,
Machinery and
Plants
2 Ground Support &
Ramp Equipment

TOTAL FOR
TANGIBLE ASSETS

34,148.3 34,135.7

INTANGIBLE ASSETS :
A. COMPUTER
SOFTWARE
TOTAL ASSETS
Previous Year

9.4

0.5

8,130.2 2,157.0

8.5

8.9

34,156.8 34,144.6
--

Capital Work-inProgress

-

-

Intangible
Assets under
Development

-

-

GRAND TOTAL

34,156.8 34,144.6
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8.1

Additions to and deductions from “Aircraft Fleet and Rotables” includes Exchange Rate Fluctuations on underlying
loans in foreign currency : addition Rs. 2,169.0 Million (Previous Year: Rs. 1,522.6 Million).

8.2

Aircraft Fleet and Rotables includes 17 Aircraft(Previous Year : 17 Aircraft) B737-800 (Registration Nos. VT-AXH,
AXI, AXJ, AXM, AXN, AXP, AXQ, AXR, AXT, AXU, AXW, AXX, AXZ, AYA, AYB, AYC and AYD) acquired on finance
lease continues to be in the name of SPV Company for which beneficial ownership is with Air India Charters
Ltd. Gross Block : Rs. 27,135.0 Million (Previous Year : Rs.25,647.5 Million), Depreciation : Rs. 7,210.1 Million
(Previous Year : Rs.5,870.2 Million), Net Block Rs. 19,925.0 Million (Previous Year : Rs.19,777.3 Million) Future
Lease rental obligation aggregate to Rs. 20,080.6 Million (Previous Year : Rs.20,922.1 Million) for which liability of
an equal amount is included in the year end balance of Future Lease Obligation.

8.3

Depreciation during the year amounts to Rs. 20.9 Million (Previous Year : Rs.20.9 Million) on Simulator has been
adjusted from Capital Reserve created for Capitalization of Simulator.

NOTE “9” : LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

Long Term Loans & Advances Short Term Loans & Advances
As at
As at
As at
As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Security Deposits
Secured Considered Good
Unsecured Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances

(A)

267.6
267.6
267.6

246.9
246.9
246.9

-

-

(B)

0.7
0.7
0.7

0.8
0.8
0.8

-

-

(C)

-

-

402.8
402.8
402.8

2,316.1
2,316.1
2,316.1

-

-

0.5
0.5
0.5

3.0
3.0
3.0

-

-

-

-

66.9
66.9
335.2

66.5
66.5
314.2

914.5
914.5
1,317.8

879.8
879.8
3,198.9

Advance to Related Parties
Unsecured Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances
Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind
Unsecured Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances
Loans and Advances to Employees
Unsecured Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Provision for doubtful employee Advances

(D)

Other Loans and Advances
Advance Payment of Income Tax and TDS (net
of provision for taxation)
Prepaid Expenses
Balances with Statutory / Government Authorities
Inter-corporate Balances

(E)
TOTAL (A + B + C + D + E)
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NOTE “10” : CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

Current Receivables
As at
As at
March 31, 2014
March 31, 2013

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they are due for payment
Secured Considered Good
Unsecured Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables

(A)

-

-

(B)
Total (A + B)

352.4
57.8
410.2
57.8
352.4
352.4

391.4
22.4
57.8
471.6
57.8
413.8
413.8

Other Receivables
Secured Considered Good
Unsecured Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables

NOTE “11” : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

1.

Other Current Assets
As at
As at
March 31, 2014
March 31, 2013

Interest Accrued on
i) Fixed Deposits

TOTAL

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

NOTE “12” : INVENTORIES (As taken, valued & certified by the Management)
Particulars
Stores and Spare Parts
Loose Tools
Less : Provision for Obsolescence / Inventory Reconciliation
Goods-in-Transit
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As at
March 31, 2014
1,891.5
1,891.5
375.5
1,516.0
TOTAL
1,516.0

(Rupees in Million)

As at
March 31, 2013
1,159.8
1,159.8
315.9
843.9
4.8
848.7
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NOTE “13” : CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2014

Cash and Cash Equivalents
1. Balances with Banks :
a) On Current Accounts
b) Deposit Accounts (Maturity less than 3 months)
2. Cheques, Drafts on Hand
3. Cash on Hand (as certified by the Management)
4. Remittances in Transit

(A)

Other Bank Balances
Security Deposit from Employees
Margin Money Deposits (more than 3 months but less than 12 months)
(Under lien against Bank Guarantee/Letter of Credit with SBI)

(B)

Less : Deposits - Others (More than 12 Months) shown as non current

TOTAL (A + B)

665.0
1.4
125.6
792.0

104.3
27.9
1.3
133.5

11.1

10.6

11.1
803.1

10.6
144.1

NOTE “14” : TRAFFIC REVENUE

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
Scheduled Services
1 Passenger
2 Excess Baggage
3 Mail
4 Cargo

2013-14

Less : Revenue Sharing with Air India Limited (Holding Company)
TOTAL

23,166.1
295.5
0.4
132.5
23,594.5
2,949.3
20,645.2

NOTE “15” : HANDLING, SERVICING AND INCIDENTAL REVENUE

1
2

2012-13
17,481.7
193.1
0.5
75.6
17,750.9
2,218.9
15,532.0

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
Handling and Servicing
Incidental
TOTAL

2013-14
15.0
33.8

2012-13
36.1
40.7

48.8

76.8

NOTE “16” : OTHER REVENUE

1

As at
March 31, 2013

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
Interest Income on :
Bank Deposits

2013-14

TOTAL
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2.1

1.6

2.1

1.6
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NOTE “17” : OPERATING EXPENSES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

2013-14

2012-13

1

Insurance

157.7

147.4

2

Material Consumed - Aircraft

507.4

294.4

3

Outside Repairs - Aircraft

427.1

210.5

4

Navigation, Landing, Housing and Parking

1,186.9

862.4

5

Hire of Aircraft

859.1

780.2

6

Handling Charges

1,270.6

1,097.4

7

Passenger Amenities

400.1

253.0

8

Booking Agency Commission

182.3

177.0

9

Communication Charges
23.3

20.7

2.6

3.3

5,017.1

3,846.3

i) Reservation System
ii) Others
TOTAL

NOTE “18” : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

2013-14

2012-13

1 Salaries, Wages and Bonus

869.7

938.9

2 Crew Allowances

654.8

491.4

16.7

22.3

2.1

2.8

33.2

0.1

6.9

-

1,583.4

1,455.5

3 Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
4 Staff Welfare Expenses
5 Provision for Gratuity
6 Provision for Leave Encashment
TOTAL

NOTE “19” : FINANCE COST

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

2013-14

2012-13

1 Interest on :
a) Debentures
b) Aircraft Loans
c) Other Loans

2

Other Borrowing Costs

3

Applicable net gain/loss on foreign currency transactions and translation

4

Delayed Payment Charges to Fuel Companies
TOTAL
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89.1

89.1

558.7

589.7

1,698.5

1,638.0

2,346.3

2,316.8

1,627.0

16.9

-

68.2

182.7
4,156.0

157.9
2,559.8
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NOTE “20” : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
1

Depreciation of Tangible Assets

2

Amortization of Intangible Assets

2013-14

2012-13

2,300.6

2,156.6

0.4

0.4

2,301.0

2,157.0

20.9

20.9

(B)

20.9

20.9

TOTAL (A- B)

2,280.1

2,136.1

(A)

Less : Recoupment from Capital Reserve (Refer Note 3)

NOTE “21” : OTHER EXPENSES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

2013-14

2012-13

1 Travelling Expenses
219.1

186.7

27.5

29.3

2 Rent

6.9

4.9

3 Rates and Taxes

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

10.2

3.1

5 Hire of Transport

36.7

31.5

6 Electricity & Heating Charges

18.6

9.5

7 Water Charges

0.2

0.1

8 Publicity and Sales Promotion

3.9

4.6

9 Printing and Stationery

1.8

1.8

10 Legal Charges

0.3

0.2

11 Auditors’ Remuneration and Expenses

0.4

0.4

-

57.8

37.5

53.9

(73.1)

39.1

-

-

156.1

193.7

446.4

616.8

i) Crew
ii) Others

4 Repairs to :
i) Buildings
ii) Others

12 Provision for Bad & Doubtful Receivables and Advances
13 Provision for Obsolescence (Net)
14 Exchange Variation (Net)
15 Loss on Sale / Discarded Fixed Assets (Net)
16 Miscellaneous Expenses
TOTAL
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NOTE “22” : PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Net)

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
Revenue Heads
1. Passenger Revenue
2. Others
(A)

Expenditure Heads
1. Handling Charges
2. Stores and Equipments
3. Passenger Amenities
4. Crew Hotel Expenses
5. Publicity
6. Delayed Payment Charges to Fuel Companies
7. Hire of Transport
8. Salaries/Staff Welfare Expenses
9. Landing, Parking and Navigation
10. Professional and Consultancy
11. Fuel (Ops.) - Aircraft
12. Rent, Rates and Taxes
13. Expenses on Computer Reservation
14. Interest
15. Outside repair
16. Others (Net)
(B)
TOTAL (A+B)

2013-14

2012-13

(6.7)
(6.7)

(4.4)
(1.7)
(6.1)

34.7
9.9
5.9
47.8
128.1
(177.0)
1.4
72.6
2.7
0.6
126.7
120.0

(5.1)
1.5
19.3
0.2
0.7
0.7
17.0
1.0
0.2
2.8
4.3
42.6
36.5

NOTE “23” : EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

1

2
3

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
Inventory Migration Surplus / Written back
Provision for Inventory Repairs - Expen.
Less :Provision for Inventory Reconciliation

2013-14

Balances of Subsidiary Companies written Back
Provision No Longer Required

TOTAL
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192.4
(91.7)
(100.7)
75.7
(25.0)

2012-13
487.3
183.4
303.9
26.2
330.1

AICL
24.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY:

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (excluding interest and penalty wherever applicable) and
being contested to the extent ascertainable and quantifiable:

25.

(a)

The Company has received show cause notices from Directorate General of Central Excise Intelligence, on
applicability of Service Tax on various fees paid on External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) loans (under
Banking & Financial Services), on Management, Maintenance & Repair Service on leased aircraft and as
recipient of service from Non-Resident Service Providers. The Service Tax liability for the period 2005 to
2014 of Rs. 513.3 Million (Previous Year Rs. 363.3 Million) has not been provided as the company has
referred the matter to the Ministry to waive the applicability of Service Tax. The company is also representing
the matter with the Service Tax department. The liability on account of interest and penalty is not considered
above since the same has not been charged / demanded in the show cause notice.

(b)

The Company has also received notices from Customs and Excise Department in previous years towards
applicability of duty on consumption of fuel on domestic flights (reference C.No. VIII/10-12/CUST/ADJ/dated
31 January 2013 and C.NO. VIII/10/14/2013-CUST/237 dated 26 November, 2014). However, no additional
notices have been received during the current financial year. The Company has not accounted the claims of
Rs. 4.7 Million (Previous Year Rs. 8.8 Million) during the current financial year in accordance with the practice
followed in the previous financial years, as the same is under appeal.

(c)

The company has received a demand notice vide Communication Ref. No. 72-00593 dated 9 December
2014 from Income Tax Department towards TDS for a total amount of Rs. 115.4 Million for the FY 2006-07 to
2013-14 (Previous Year – NIL). The company is in the process of filing an appeal against the said demand
notice.

(d)

The company has received a demand notice from Income Tax Department towards TDS for a total amount of
Rs. 29.1Million (Previous Year - 29.1 Million) for the Financial Year 2009-10 and 2010-11. The company has
filed an appeal against the order passed by the Income Tax Department.

(e)

The company has received a demand notice from Income Tax Department towards an amount of Rs. 6.4
Million (Previous Year - 6.4 Million) for the Financial Year 2009-10. The company has filed an appeal against
the order passed by the Income Tax Department.

(f)

Pending reconciliation with various airport authorities, quantum of delayed payment charges payable, if any,
has not been provided as the amount is not ascertainable.

(g)

Letter of Credits issued by Bank of Baroda for Exim Tranch II loan outstanding amount to Rs. 719.0 Million
(Previous Year: Rs. 651.4 Million)

(h)

Foreign bank guarantee issued by State Bank of India towards Tranch Ill loan Rs. 270.4 Million
(Previous Year Rs. 239.9 Million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS:

Aircraft Projects:
Capital Commitments are in respect of estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account
(Net of Advances) Rs. 625.5 Million (Previous Year Rs. 566.7 Million) i.e. cost of one spare engine.
Other:
Pending complete implementation of SAP, the project cost has not been apportioned by Air India Limited
(Holding Company), as such no provision has been made in the books of accounts.
26.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

(a)

Contributions to Defined Contribution Schemes such as Provident Fund are charged to the Profit & Loss
Account as follows:
Provident Fund Rs. 16.7 Million (Previous Year Rs. 22.3 Million).
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(b)

The Company also provides retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity and Leave Encashment on the basis
of valuation, as at the Balance Sheet Date, carried out by independent Actuaries, as per revised AS 15 –
Accounting for Employee Benefits issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(c)

Net liability as per Actuarial Valuation is as follows:
i.

Privilege Leave Encashment is payable to all eligible employees at the time of retirement upto a
maximum of 84 days.
Leave encashment Rs. 26.9 Million (Previous Year Rs. 21.1 Million).
Defined Benefit Plan-Gratuity (Unfunded)

ii.
iii.

Sr. Particulars
No.
a)

As at
As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Change in Benefit Obligation
Liability at the beginning of the year Interest Cost
Current Service cost

c)

d)

g)

17.0
43.0

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

-

-

Expected return on Plan Assets Contributions

-

-

Benefit Paid

-

-

Actuarial (gain)/Loss on Plan Assets

-

-

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

-

-

Total Actuarial (gain)/Loss on Plan Assets

-

-

Expected return on Plan Asset Actuarial (gain)/Loss on Plan
Asset
Actual return on Plan Asset

-

-

-

-

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet Liability at the end of
the year

76.2

43.0

Actual return on Plan Asset

-

-

76.2

43.0

Current Service cost

-

-

Interest Cost

-

-

Expected return on Plan Asset

-

-

Net Actuarial (gain)/Loss to be recognized

33.2

17.0

Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss Account

33.2

17.0

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet

f)

-

Actuarial (gain)/Loss on Obligations
Liability at the end of the year
Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
e)

26.0

33.2
76.2

Benefit Paid

b)

43.0

Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss Account

Balance Sheet reconciliation Opening Net Liability
Expense as above

43.0

26.0

Employer’s contribution

33.2

17.0

Closing Net Liability

76.2

43.0

9.31%
5.00%

8%
5.00%

Actuarial Assumptions for the year:
Discount Rate
Rate of return on Plan Asset Salary Escalation
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27.

In the absence of information of supplier’s status, as defined under the Interest on Delayed payments to Micro
Medium and Small Enterprises (MSME) Act 2006, the provision and disclosure for unpaid amounts together with
interest on delayed payments, if any, to such suppliers, could not be made in the Accounts.

28.

On 26   March 2010, the Company had issued 950 Privately Placed, Rated, Listed, Unsecured, Taxable,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures with face value of Rs.10 Lakhs each, aggregating Rs.95 Crores.
These bonds are guaranteed by Government of India. The Bond issue has been rated by CRISIL as AAA (SO)
and Fitch Ratings as AAA (ind)(SO)(Exp).
These debentures are redeemable at par on March 26, 2020. Redemption Reserve as required under section
117C of the Companies Act 1956 has not been created since there are no profits.

29.

During the current financial year the company has billed Air India Limited (Holding Company) towards various
handling services. The amount so billed has been recognized as handling revenue and the cost incurred has been
debited to the Staff Cost.

30.

While the company has opened independent bank accounts at various Indian/foreign locations, there are still
some transactions carried out by Air India Limited for and on behalf of the company and vice-versa. Expenditure/
collections at some stations are made by Air India Limited on behalf of the company and same has been routed
through the Current Account/Inter Company Payable and Receivable, based on information provided by Air India
Limited.

31.

Cargo Revenue and Mail Revenue has been accounted based on information received from Air India Ltd. Whereas
the Excess Baggage collection at few stations are controlled and monitored by Air India Limited on behalf of the
company and the same has been accounted based on information provided by Air India Limited.

32.

INVENTORY & ROTABLES

a)

Procurement of Stores, Aircraft etc. is controlled and monitored by the Air India Limited (Holding Company).

b)

The aircraft inventory of the company had been migrated to the ERP package developed by RAMCO, during
2012-13 except the inventory valued at Rs. 8.1 Million (Previous Year Rs. 31.8 Million) which is still being
maintained in legacy system.

c)

During the migration process in 2012-13, no physical verification of the inventory was conducted and the
migration was done based on sign off reports related to legacy systems/manual records or data compiled
at different locations. The documented basis for quantities and values migrated to RAMCO system was not
readily available mainly in case of inventory of unserviceable items. The physical verification of migrated
inventory has since been completed and the discrepancies noticed are under verification and necessary
accounting adjustments are to be done for after due process. The balances in SAP with Ramco data base
is under reconciliation. The financial impact of the same is not ascertainable at this stage. The data migration
audit of the process is also to be conducted and discrepancies if any, would be adjusted in due course.

d)

During the migration process in 2012-13, wherever applicable weighted average cost in respect of
unserviceable inventory was not readily available, the valuation rates in these cases had been taken as
per latest available weighted average rates/ catalogue price. There are cases wherein free of cost (FOC)
items, cannibalized items and items of inventory received with aircraft have also been valued and taken into
inventory at the values as stated above. However, the exact quantum of same is not identifiable at this stage.
Items where rates/quantities are to be still to be corrected are also being identified and corrective action will
be taken in due course. Since the exact value of such inventory is not ascertainable due to movement in
inventory, an ad-hoc of Rs. 91.7 Million (Previous year Rs.183.4 Million) provision being 50% of previous
year’s provision has been retained in the books.

e)

As per the accounting practice followed by the company in order to comply with the laid down accounting
policy, the repairable items issued are debited to consumption account at the time of closure of work order
while the parts received back against the issue are taken back in the inventory. Consequent to the practice
followed, there are unserviceable parts being carried as inventory and valued at latest weighted average
cost. As the process is continuous, it is not possible to match the items/values charged to consumption and
taken back. The difference on account of change in weighted average as well time-lag between the issue of
material and its return in the inventory remains unascertained due to the volume of transactions. The same
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is adjusted at the time when respective accounting actions are taken as at the year end, the precise impact
thereof has not been determined.
f)

The data relating to the last five years’ movement of inventory is not available in RAMCO systems. Based on
the movement data available in the legacy system, items have been identified as non-moving and provision
towards the same has been carried to the extent of Rs. 91.4 Million (Previous Year Rs. 53.9 Million during
the year).

g)

Physical verification of inventories for the biennial period 2012-14 is under progress and necessary
accounting treatment of the discrepancies observed by the internal auditors of holding company are to be
carried out in due course.

h)

The holding company has engaged outside consultants to advise on streamlining the entire system of
inventory accounting to benchmark the industry best practices and system of ordering and controls. Ramco
software is also being upgraded suitably. The management is taking required steps to ensure that the
discrepancies noticed during migration/ post migration with regard to physical verification and valuation
of inventory balances being carried in the books of accounts and necessary accounting treatment shall be
carried out at the time of reconciliation. The precise financial impact of the same on the financial statements
is not ascertainable at this stage.

i)

Inventories at the year end include balances under in-house repairing jobs being carried as “Work Order
Suspense Internal / External” which contains materials issued and repair charges valued at Rs. 739.8
Million issued in respect of closed/completed/pre-closed/cancelled/initiated/in-progress Work Orders having
completion date till the year end, lying unadjusted. These items are to be accounted for as consumption of
material/repairs, as per the accounting process followed in the Ramco System. Further to aforesaid, the
work order suspense account, include expendable items of Rs. 384.8 Million which are to be charged off
to consumption on issuance. As against the above, a provision of Rs. 192.4 Million has been made and
accounting for the remaining items shall be done as and when these Work Orders are closed in the Ramco
System.

j)

Pending reconciliation /rectification of inventory balances, no provision has been made towards the inventory
balances aggregating to Rs.121.4 Million lying under various intermediary heads for which consumption
/ issue/ scrappage has not been updated in Ramco System till 31 March 2014. Necessary accounting
adjustments required shall be carried out in due course.

k)

Liability for Goods/Expenses for all materials received have been provided as per the values in GRANs
& Store-in-Transit statement as on 31.3.2014 as per RAMCO generated data. The system of delay in
preparation of GRANs and accounting of GRANs outside RAMCO database and consequential effect
thereon on recognition of liability is under review at appropriate level. As the entries in SAP are being
posted at summary level, vendor-wise reconciliation of balances of advances and payables outstanding
at the year end is pending. Accounting of exchange difference relating to transactions settled during the
year and translation of liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the year end has also been done
to the extent of available data. There are various vendor related accounts which are being reconciled.
The accounting of FDI (Freight Duty and Incidentals) is also being streamlined by capturing such cost in
Ramco. The precise financial impact of the above is being ascertained and shall be accounted for in due
course.

l)

The interface between SAP and RAMCO is yet to be stabilized and hence stores accounting data as received
from RAMCO is being entered through summary level entries in SAP. Closing balance of inventory as per
the books of accounts is being reconciled with RAMCO data base and necessary adjustment shall be carried
out after such reconciliation. The delay in the interface is mainly due to the exact nature of accounting to be
finalized in view of the Ramco System being ideally suited for MRO applications.

m)

The value of rotables migrated to SAP is available on consolidated block basis. Post migration to RAMCO/
SAP, the item-wise details of Rotables are being worked out as per data generated from RAMCO. The itemwise details of Rotables as generated from RAMCO software are being compared with financial records.
Necessary reconciliation of data as per finance records with RAMCO generated data shall be carried out in
due course and necessary accounting adjustment in that respect will be carried out thereafter.
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33.

As per MOU between Air India Limited (Holding Company) and Air India Charters Limited, revenue earned
from Scheduled Services of Air India Charters Limited has been shared between Air India Limited and Air India
Charters Limited in the ratio 12.50% and 87.50% respectively effective FY 2012-13. (earlier 25% and 75%
respectively).

34.

Pursuant to the undertaking between Air India Charters Limited and Air India Limited, and commercial decisions,
Air India Charters Limited was to share cost towards common facilities and services till 31 March 2007. No cost
towards common facilities and services has been allotted to Air India Charters Limited. However, in a phased
manner, the stations which have only Air India Express flight operations, the complete station expenditure is being
debited to Air India Charters Limited. In addition, during the current year, Air India Charters Limited has reimbursed
an amount of Rs. 624.3 Million to Air India Ltd. (Previous Year Rs.581.8 Million) towards the manpower cost
deputed to the company.

35.

Claims for reimbursements to employees for availing medical insurance, loss baggage claims, excess baggage,
refund to passengers and crew allowances are accounted for on cash basis.

36.

During the FY 2012-13 the company has migrated to three new systems viz. SAP for accounting, Reservation System
and Ramco for Inventory Management. The company is still in the process of implementing and strengthening the
internal controls and carrying out System/Migration audit. The Company has carried out the Migration Audit of SAP
system during the year 2013-14.The Company will carry out the System Audit of the new Reservation System
during 2014-15.

37.

The company has sought the confirmation of balances for most of the major receivables and payables and in
this respect parties have been requested to confirm the balances. However, in many cases the parties have not
responded. Wherever the balances confirmed by the parties are not in agreement, the reconciliation is under
process and effect of consequential adjustments is not ascertainable as of now.

38.

As per the consistently followed practice, the ageing of debtors is arrived based on due date of the invoice. In
certain cases there are unmatched / identified credits which are not netted against the debits outstanding and
reconciliation of balances in the debtors account is in progress. The impact of the above on the age of debts as
due as computed in accordance with the accounting policy of the company, can not been determined.

39.

Balances with Indian PSU Oil companies have been confirmed for the entire Air India group of companies, however,
the confirmation and reconciliation for the company is under process.

40.

In absence of relevant notification by the Government of India specifying the period and applicable rate at which
`Cess’ on turnover is payable under section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956, the same is not determinable and
hence not provided for.

41.

SEGMENT REPORTING:

i)

In terms of AS-17, the company is engaged in airline related business, which is its primary business segment
and hence segment results are not discussed. The details of geographical area-wise gross revenue earned
(derived by allocating revenue to the area in which the sale was made) are given hereunder:
(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
a) Gulf
b) India
c) S.E. Asia
TOTAL

ii)

FY 2013-14
12,177.1
9,967.5
1,021.5
23,166.1

FY 2012-13
9,221.6
7,300.1
959.7
17,481.4

The major revenue earning asset of the company is aircraft fleet which is flexibly deployed across its
route network. There is no suitable basis for allocation of assets and liabilities to geographical statement,
consequently, area-wise assets and liabilities are not disclosed.
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iii)

42.

Presentation of Annual Accounts read with the Directors Report every year enables better understanding
of the performance of the enterprise, better assessment of risk and returns, and makes more informed
judgment about the activities of the company as a whole.

LEASES

i)

Finance Leases:
Aircraft Fleet and Equipment acquired under finance leases are treated as if they had been purchased
outright. The cost of these assets taken on lease is Rs. 43,108.2 Million (Previous Year Rs. 40,939.1 Million).
The future lease obligation is Rs. 20,080.6 as at March 31, 2014 (Previous Year Rs. 20,922.1 Million).
The breakup of total minimum lease payments due as at 31 March 2014 and their corresponding present
values are as follows:
(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
a)

As at
March 31, 2014

Outstanding balance of minimum lease payments including
interest thereon,
- Not later than 1 year
- Later than 1 yr and not later than 5 yrs
- Later than 5 yrs.
Total

b)

Present value of (a) above
- Not later than 1 year
- Later than 1 yr and not later than 5 yrs
- Later than 5 yrs.
Total

c)

Finance Charges

As at
March 31, 2013

3,495.4
14,405.3
3,409.7
21,310.4

3,131.4
13,079.0
6,246.1
22,456.5

3,134.6
13,590.7
3,355.3
20,080.6
1,229.8

2,728.4
12,079.9
6,113.8
20,922.1
1,534.4

Note: Interest has been calculated assuming LIBOR as 0.5%
ii)

Operating Leases:
(a) Aircraft:
The Company has taken Aircraft on non-cancelable lease. The future minimum lease rental payment as on
31 March 2014 is as under:(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

FY 2013-14

FY 2012-13

Payable within 1 year

177.5

773.5

Payable later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 Years

NIL
NIL
177.5

52.7
NIL
826.2

Total

However, in case of premature termination balance lease rent for un-expired period is payable on termination.
Lease Rental recognized in the Profit and Loss Account is Rs. 859.1 Million (Previous Year Rs.780.2 Million).
Contribution to Maintenance Reserve to the extent not utilized, recognized in the Profit & Loss Account is Rs. 52.7
Million (Previous Year Rs 49.9 Million).
As per the terms of the lease Agreement, the Holding company Air India Limited, has given a Corporate Guarantee
on behalf of the company in respect of lease of the Aircraft.
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iii)

Arrangement for Finance Leases:
The aircraft capitalized (737-800) were delivered to Air India Charters Limited between December 2006 to
December 2009. 85% of aircraft financing package provided by the financial institutions is guaranteed by
US Exim which in turn is guaranteed through a GOI guarantee in favour of US Exim. The balance 15% is
arranged through Commercial loans. Under the financing arrangement with US Exim the company has to
form a Special Purpose Vehicle Company (SPV Company) which would be located in a tax free jurisdiction
which would own the asset. A two tier structure was therefore put in place whereby the head lessor (SPV
Company) was situated in Delaware which could lease the aircraft to an Irish SPV (established in order to
make the transaction tax neutral). Since the issue of settling the GOI guarantee took considerable time, the
company in the meanwhile had to take delivery of the aircraft in its books through a temporary financing
arrangement. When the US Exim guaranteed loan was in place it was decided to cover all the delivered
aircraft in the fleet up to that point by transferring the assets to the SPV Company based in Delaware and
lease it again through the Irish SPV. There was as such, no actual sale to the SPV Company but this had to
be done to complete and comply with the formalities of putting together a financial arrangement which was
guaranteed through the US Exim. All costs related to the acquisition of the aircraft including the setting up of
the SPV Companies have been capitalized in the books since it pertained to the acquisition of the aircraft.
The lease has been structured as a financial lease so that the ownership in the aircraft would pass on to Air
India Charters Limited at the end of the lease period. In the meanwhile, i.e. the time from when the asset
was initially acquired by the company in its books to the date the asset was transferred to the SPV company
certain installments in the form of principal and interest fell due which were paid off.

43.

Depreciation on Fixed Assets
The method of providing depreciation on aircrafts and Airframes equipments (737-800) has been changed during
the year 2007-08 by considering the estimated life of aircraft as 20 years as against 17 years considered in earlier
years. The matter had been taken up with CLB for permission and the CLB desired to have a certificate from
Manufacturer that how the fleet of Boeing 737-800, has a better life as compared to other types of aircraft. As
desired by CLB, the company has now obtained a certificate from Boeing that the life of Boeing 737-800 aircraft is
more than 20 years and the matter will be again taken up with CLB for their permission.
The details of the depreciation calculated on such fixed assets for 17 years and 20 years is as under:
(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
20 Years
17 Years
Difference

Impact on Depreciation
FY 2013-14
FY 2012-13
2,210.8
2,072.7
2,623.5
2,429.8
412.7
357.1

As the aircraft fleet is still young, no provision for impairment of assets has been made.
44.

Related Party Transactions:
Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard 18 (AS18) “Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:
I.

Related party:
Where Control Exists : Air India Ltd., 100% Holding Company

(a)

Board of Directors
i. Shri Rohit Nandan
ii. Dr. Shefali Juneja
iii. Smt. Puja Jindal
iv. Shri S. Venkat
v. ACM (Retd.) Fali H. Major

Chairman
Director
Director
Director
Director

(b)

Key Managerial Personnel
Shri K. Shyam Sundar

Chief Executive Officer
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45.

II.

Related Party Transactions:
i.
There are no transactions with Key Managerial Personnel except remuneration and perquisites to
Chief Executive Officer. During the year 2013-14, an amount of Rs. 0.25 Million has been paid as
remuneration to Chief Executive Officer.
ii.
The Holding Company and its other Subsidiary Companies are State Controlled Enterprise as defined
under AS-18 (Para 9) and hence transactions undertaken by the company with them do not fall within
the definition of related party transactions.
iii.
Transactions such as providing Airline related services in the normal course of airline business are not
included above.

III.

No loans or credit transactions were outstanding with Directors or Officers of the Company or their relatives
at the end of the year which is required to be disclosed in accounts under the Companies Act, 1956.

Deferred Tax Asset (Liability) is as under:
(As worked out by the Management)		

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

As on
31 March 2014

As on
31 March 2013

10,915.0

10,275.0

13.0

9.0

- Loss

10,902.0

10,266.0

- Total DTA

10,915.0

10,275.0

-

-

Deferred Tax Liability : (DTL)
- Depreciation
Deferred Tax Assets : (DTA)
- Disallowances as per I.T. Act’ 61 (Net)

Net DTA/(DTL)

Note:
i.
Deferred Tax Liability (DTL) attributable to difference in the book and tax depreciation is considered to give
rise to situation of virtual certainty to Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), to the extent attributable to tax loss arising
from such differential depreciation on account of direct nexus between such DTA and DTL. Hence, DTA for
tax losses is recognized to the extent of DTL arising from depreciation difference.
ii.
Losses do not include the Business Losses older than 8 years.
46.

As per the practice followed, as prudence, the company has charged off the CENVAT credit up to 31 March
2012. However, effective FY 2012-13, the amount to the extent of CENVAT credit claimed has been retained
in the books of accounts and the balance amount has been charged off. This is due to the fact that, due to
the amendment in the Service Tax Act, service tax has also been levied on economy class travel. Not with
standing the above, the company reserves the right to claim accumulated CENVAT credit, as per clarification by
CBEC Vide Circular No. File No.137172/2008-CX.4 dated November 21, 2008 towards payment of future output
Service Tax.

47.

The company could not claim the CENVAT credit for the amount of Rs. 73.5 Million, during the year 2013-14, which
will be claimed while filing the return for the year 2014-15.

48.

During the Financial Year 2012-13, Air India Limited has billed the company towards reimbursement of cost along
with service tax of Rs. 71.9 Million, which has been contested by the Company, necessary action will be taken after
conclusion of discussion with the holding company.

49.

During the Financial Year an amount of Rs. 15.9 Million regarding deposit made with   Service Tax authorities for
an appeal filed by the company, which was earlier inadvertently charged to Profit & Loss Account has been rectified
in the current financial year.

50.

Pending final reconciliation with vendors, an amount of Rs. 114.7 Million has been paid as ‘On Account Payment’
which has been shown under ‘Advance to Supplier A/c and Advance to Supplier – SER A/c’ and corresponding
liability of same has been shown under respective Vendor Liability.
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51.

The following balances need to be confirmed and reconciled and adjusted for in the books (Rs. in Million)

Account Code

Short Text

Debit Balance

1109001000

AP Liability

79.3

0.0

1110003151

TDS194 Clrg Acct (OLD)

34.0

0.0

2212001505

Unidentified Recpt.

0.0

26.8

2214005010

TDS-India

66.8

0.0

2214002280

Inter Station Acct ***

0.0

208.2

2214005075

1941 TDS Cert Recvble

0.1

0.0

1110003110

TDS 194 C - Payable

0.0

6.8

1110003115

TDS 194 I - Payable

0.0

22.3

1110003125

TDS 194 J - Payable

0.0

23.3

1110003130

TDS on Commission

0.0

0.6

180.2

288.0

Total

Credit Balance

*** Inter Station Account includes the amount related to certain transaction, which could not be specifically identified
as such (other than mentioned at Para 54).
The impact on Profit & Loss Account on such reconciliation/confirmation, if any, is not ascertained. However, the
Management doesn’t expect any material adjustment on receipt of confirmation/reconciliation of such balances.
52.

Subsequent to finalization of account of Air India Limited (Holding Company), the Company was required to pass
certain rectification entry, the impact of which has been passed in the books of AICL, as on 31 March 2014 by
giving the corresponding effect in Inter Station Account, and the necessary corrective action has been passed in
the books of Air India Limited as on 1 April 2014 and the net amount has been parked to Account code – Rs. 46.3
Million the details of these entries are as under :
(Rs. in Million)

Account Code

Nomenclature

Financial impact

3301001600

Revenue Sharing

+ Rs. 38.5

4415002100

Interest Expense

- Rs. 84.8

Net Impact
53.

- Rs. 46.3

Income Tax deducted at source India (2214005010)
This account shows a balance of Rs. 6.68 Cores as refundable from the income tax authorities. However, as per
the assessment orders available, the income tax authorities have determined nil refund. The necessary action is
being taken in consultation with the Tax Consultants.

54.

EARNING PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
Profit/(Loss) After Tax & Before Extra-Ordinary Items

As at
As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(3428.2)
(3841.7)
25.0

(330.1)

(3453.2)

(3511.6)

3,000,000

3,000,000

a) Before Extra-Ordinary Items (Rs per Share)

(1142.70)

(1280.60)

b) After Extra-Ordinary Item (Rs per Share)

(1151.10)

(1170.50)

Less: Extra-Ordinary Items
Profit/(Loss) after Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares
EPS Basic & Diluted

55.

REMUNERATION TO STATUTORY AUDITORS:
The details of the audit fees and out of pocket expenses for the year 2013-14 are as under:
(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

2013-14

2012-13

Audit Fees for the year (Provision)

0.32

0.32

Out of Pocket Expenses

0.03

0.03

56.

In the opinion of the management, the year end balances of Current Assets and Loans are expected to realize in
the ordinary course of business and current liabilities expected to arise, at least to the extent the amount at which
they are stated.

57.

With regard to non-disclosure of information referred clauses (a) to (e), except (d) of Note 5(viii) of Part II of
Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the company is in process of taking up the matter with Ministry of
Corporate Affairs for granting exemption from complying with the discloser requirement in the Notes to Accounts.

58.

There is no remittance during the year in foreign currency on account of dividend.

59.

The details of turnover of in-flight items, as required vide paragraph 3(iii) (b) of Schedule VI to the Companies Act,
1956, are not disclosed as the turnover of such items is insignificant.

60.

GOING CONCERN
The Holding Company has decided to invest a substantial amount by way of equity infusion during the next
financial year. The Company has initiated the process of its aircraft fleet expansion and plans to deploy additional
capacity to existing profitable routes and plans to introduce certain new routes which will generate operating
surplus. The Company is taking various measures from time to time to improve operational efficiency and cost
reduction measures from time to time. Also, the company reviewed the Revenue Sharing arrangement with its
holding company and reduced the Revenue Sharing from 25% to 12.5 % w.e.f. FY 2012-13. As such Company’s
EBITDA has improved and management is confident of further improvement in the Financial Performance of the
Company. The Accounts have therefore being prepared on the ‘Going Concern’ basis.

61.

An amount of Rs. 13.8 million (US $ 272,249.45) has been shown as ‘Security Deposit’ with outside Party
(2214002125), which is towards balance of Security Deposit with a Aircraft Leasing Company, for two aircraft taken
on lease (VT-AXB and VT-AXC). Though these aircraft have been returned back to the lessor during 2010-11, the
said amount has not been returned by the Leasing Company. In view of ambiguity of recovery of this amount, a
provision for doubtful debt has been made in the books of accounts.

62.

As the Revenue Reconciliation/Accounting System is outsourced to an outside agency, the Company’s accounts
are getting recorded on the information/ periodical trial balances submitted by them. The required subsidiary
ledgers are available with the outsourced agency, The management is in the process of obtaining the necessary
certificate as prescribed under SA 402 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
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63.

64.

NEW RESERVATION SYSTEM :
(a)

Effective 1 April 2012, Reservation System is migrated to a new Reservation System.

(b)

At the time of matching sales made by Cash Upfront Agent vis-a-vis Reservation System, it was observed
that one of the leading agent has sold tickets but the amount of the sale had not been depleted in Reservation
System (Citrix). As a result, during the period 2012-13, 16,366 PNRs starting from 2 April 2012 onward,
had not appeared in the reservation system having a value of Rs. 207.9 Million. The matter had been
rigorously taken up with the concerned agent and the amount to the tune of Rs. 194.1 Million has already
been recovered and the balance amount of Rs. 13.8 Million will be recovered.

(c)

At the initial stage of migration of Reservation System, due to a bug, the Transaction Fees had not been
captured in respect of the new agent created after 1 April  2012. The bug was rectified in June 2012 and as a
result, during April to June 2012, the Company has suffered a loss of approximately Rs. 27.5 Million (as per
report provided by Reservation System provider). The Reservation System has not admitted the Liability and
instead has offered the support of US $ 25,000 towards cost of any future development. Since the amount
has not been admitted as liability, the Company has made provision for doubtful debts.

(d)

During the FY 2013-14, the Agency Balance Report was available in INR currency only (even for the NonINR agents). However, during the Financial Year 2014-15, Reservation System provider has modified the
report and the balances can now be obtained in the transaction currency of the respective agent. To ensure
the internal control, the agency balances available in the subsidiary ledger maintained by the Revenue
Reconciliation System provider have been matched with the ledger and no variation has been observed.
Also during the Financial Year 2014-15 the Company has appointed the new GSAs and to enable the child
agents of old GSAs have been moved to new GSAs with zero balance so that they can retrieve the old PNRs
for the purpose of modification / refund.  

INTEREST ON DELAYED PAYMENT TO FUEL COMPANIES:

During the year delayed payment charges paid/payable to Oil companies amounting to Rs. 182.7 Million (Previous
Year Rs. 157.9 Million) has been included under “Finance Cost”. Liability towards TDS on such payment has not
been recognized as per the practice followed in this regard.
65.

Outstanding Liabilities include an ad-hoc provision of Rs. 10.0 Million ( Previous Year Rs. 10.0 Million) towards
certain expenses / liabilities for which bills have not been received as at Balance Sheet Date.

66.

As per the policy related to physical verification of fixed assets, every asset is to be verified once in two years. The
exercise of physical verification was planned for the biennial period 2012-14. Since physical verification of fixed
assets has not been carried out for the biennial period, the management is taking steps to streamline the process
of physical verification of fixed asset in order to ensure the compliance of the laid down policy. The necessary
accounting adjustments, if any, will be carried out in due course.

67.

During April~August 2014, four aircraft taken on dry lease were returned back to the lessor after completion of lease
period. The necessary working towards the amount of Rs. 740.6 Million paid to the lessor towards Maintenance
Reserve will be carried out in next financial year.

68.

The Company has availed the Short Term Working Borrowing from Bank. As per the sanction letters of the Banks,
such loan are repayable at the end of each term. However, due to requirement of the Company, such short term
loan has been rolled over for further period by payment. However, in certain cases, at the request of the Company,
the banks have rolled over such loan for a further short term without repayment of such loan.

69.

As per the consistent practice followed, aviation insurance premium is initially paid on provisional basis on the
estimated passenger count/departure count/ spares consumed. Adjustments with reference to actual counts/actual
consumption are carried out at the time when final count is known.
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70.

Tax deducted at source by outside parties for which reconciliation with Income Tax data base (Form No. 26AS)
as well as follow up for TDS certificates is in progress. Till such time, these have been considered as good for
recovery.

71.

Previous Years’ figures have been regrouped/reclassified/rearranged wherever necessary to be compatible
and comparable with the current year’s classification/disclosure to the extent of information being available and
practicable of compilation.

Signatures to the Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss and to the above
notes.

For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 105215W
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/Rohit Nandan
Chairman

Place : Delhi
Date : 6 February 2015
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Sd/Dr. Shefali Juneja
Director

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

